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1 lJay 2?, 19l~~. ' 1 :30 B' clock P .1{.

2 Defendant in court vdth counsel.

3 THE COURT: people vs. Darrow.

4 MR ROGERS: If your Honor please

5 ~"R FOBD: If the court please, there is a matter which

6 counsel desires to present to the court. We ask that the

7 jury be excused while it is being heard.

8 UR ROGERS: We obj act to the jury being excused. The thing

9 Which we desire to call your Honor's attention to was in~

10 tended originally for the benefit of the jury, and to pre­

II jUdice th~s defendant against -- prejudicfe the jury Egainst

12 the defendant. It is .9,ne of the most outrageous thing s that

13 evel' happened in jurisprudence, and I desire to present it

14 in their presence.

15 M'R FORD: We desire the jury excused until the takiI'1..g of

16 evidence -- the only thing that is proper to be presented

17 to :the jury. It is not a matter to properly come before

18 the jury. It is a matter for your Honor to inquire into.

19 I haven't read the affidavit here, but I can see the nature

20 iBf it.

21 MR FREDERICKS: If the court please, it appears to be an

affidavit that a certain article appeared in a newspaper I
and :tl'm we assume that this jury does not read the newspapert

in regard to this trial. Counsel's affidavit here, as I

have read it, goes to the effect that by the pUblication

this a~ticle in the n~vspaper, an attempt ~~s made to in

22

23

241
25

26
,
i
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1 ence this jury. Now, we certainly must assume that this

2 jury has not ssem anything of the kin d in a newspaper, and

3 will not see az:wthing' of the kind in a newspap er, so the

4 matter is one entirely for the court to detel1nine, and I

5 believe toot counsel's purpose in bringing this before the

6 jury here, is in order that he may improperly influence

7 this jury Ggainst the prosecution, and believing that, it

8 seems to me, if there is to be any discussion of the mat-

9 tel" it should be made and contended without the presence at'

10 the jury. He thinks that the prosecution wishes to in-

11 fluence the jury improperly t and we certainly think that he

does.

court assmnes the jury has not seen the daily nevvspapers.

TEE COURT: Gentlemen, I don't think it is necessary to

cast any aspersions on each other. Let me see the affida-

TEE BAILIFF: All pertaining to the case is cut -- I have

the clippings here --

THE COURT: Make the statement so werybody can hear it.

THE BAILIFF: We cut all the clippings out, anything per-

Mr Aguerre, I assume counsel is correct -- thevit.

12

13

14

15

16
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18
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20

21

22
taining to this case.

23

24

]'I'"R ROGERS: The affidavit states we have infonnation tmt

the article was endeavo,red to be got to the jury. ,We
4,

don't knovr t mtit has happened.

success at this time?

If that endeavor was a failure, wny make it aTHE COURT:
25

26
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1 HR APPEL: . Your Honor, ".-e ask for more relief than a mere

2· statement. We have the wight to have the court protect us.

3 THE CaURI': I think, gentlemen, that it would be better to

4 temporarily, at least, excuse the jury until we go into

5 these questions.

6 J:TR APPEL: Your Honor, we are -- it has been decided that

7 all proceedings in a criminal case after a jury is consti­

8 tuted a part of the court, must necessarily be had in the

9 presence of the jury. now, we are not going to consent to

10 anything .....l1ere)y we waive any right. This jlttry and this

11 court now constitute the court before whom,ve are being

12 tried, and I don't knowanv power in this court to dismember

13 itself or excuse the jury from the court, and vve are not

14 going to vaive that. We may do as your Honor may think

15 best in the matter, but we contend that this proceeding in

16 thi s case which affec ts the right 0 f this d efende.nt, we are

17 enti tled to protection from any matter or thing that may

18 appear in there as intimidation ~ainst thisdefendant. It

19 has been held by the courts, your Honor, that anything

20 that v,'ill intimidate the defendant, that vdll distract his

21 a ttention from the issues in the case and will make him tur

22 his mind .away from the proceedings of the court, is an

23 intimidation and interferes with the fair and honest trial

24 of the case.

25

26



1 Now, of course, your Honor may do as your Honor thinks is

2 pfoper in excusing the jury or not. ~e do not vnsh it at thi

3 time, to waive the right to have the jury, which constitutes

4 a part of this court, excused. We say that in a criminal

5 action of this kind, in a criminal actionamounting to a

6 felony, that there is no pC1Ner in the court, vmenever.a .iury

7 has peen 8mpaneled, thatthe Court before whom we are trying

8 the case, is constituted the judge upOIl the bench and regu­

9 lates 'the proceedings according to its judgment and accord-

10 ing with the rule laid down by him and the jury are a part

11 and they constitute part of the court.

12 For that reason, and only for that r~ason, we are object

13 ing to the jury being excused.

14 TIfF. COURT: I want to get the defendant's point of this

15 matter. I am afraid I have not got the point. Your protest

16 seems to be, an article appeared in some newspaper Which was

17 intended to affect the minds of the jury adversely to the

18 defendant.

191m APPEL: Affect this defendant.

20 nrE CODrtT: It now appears that the jury has not seen or

21 heard of that article.

22 MR APP~: Well, of course, we pEesent an issue, your Honor,

23 by pleadings here. We lrave a right, that is the only way

24 in which we can bring your Honor's attention to the matter.

25 These are allegations contained in that affidavit, deemed

26 to be true just now. Tf anyone connected with this
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1 tion, your Honor please -- I am not prejudging now, I want

2 to be fair to everybody, -- if anyone conn ected wi th this

3 prosecution has undertaken here to fix public opinion against

4 our client, if he has undertaken to intimidate him, if he

5 has undertaken to intimidate our witnesses, if he has under­

6 taken to turn your 'Honor's mind against this defendant, by

7 prejudicing your Honor's mind, although it has not reached

8 that jlury, we are entitled to have this proceeding before

9 that jury, so that the jury may be cautioned against any

10 I such thing as th..at. We do not say these things will prej u-

11 dice this jury, we are trying to avoid the very thing which

;). 12 is stated in that affidavit to occur. We present this in

13 good fai tho NoW, having at stake the libertyand life of a
an attorney

14 man of this kind"who would not p:esent ~"his matter to your

15 Honor's fa.irness and to your Honor's ruling, I say, is not

16 doing hi s duty, and here we are accused, if your Honor

17 please, right at the outset, with doing this very thing in

18 order to affect this jury's mjnd. I say, we do not vant

19 this jury's mip,d to be affected, but this jury constitutes a

20 part of this court and the matters and things whidh we are

21 bringing in this affidavit are brOUght befor e your Honor -­

22 so far as the punishment you may mete out to anyone who is

23 found guilty of the offense charged, and also for the benefit

24 of this jury, to show to them we are fair in our trial, we

25 want them to hear everything here, tha t there are no seer

26 with this defense, that we do not come rummaging around i
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1 neighborhood here, trying to intimidate the other side,

2 that we onl~rwant a fair and bonest tfial. VJhatever the ver-

3 dict may be here, thEn no one can complain. Now, your !tonor,

4 it is not in the power of the district attorney nor in your

5 power to say to this jury that they must leave this courtroo

6 in a matter which vie think is a part and parcel of this tria

7 and we have decision of tb.at kind and in this state.

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



150

JJR FORD: There are facts alleged in this affidavit which

if true, the parties gUilty of it, should be brought\before

the court and punished for contempt of court. This is

~ot an issue in the trial of the case of people vs. Caa~­

ence Darrow, and is a matter affecting the integrity of

the court, and, if so, constitutes a contempt of court.

We would ask that the matter be continued until 9 o'clock

tomorrow morning in order that we may make an inquiry into

this matter, and find out what the actual facts are in re­

lation to it, and if necessary, present affidavits, so

that there vdll be something before the court on which the

court may act. It is not a matter relevant or pertinent

that is before the jury, of the guilt or innocence of. the

defendant; it is a matter in Vihich the jury has no inter­

est. I presume the jury will meet atlQ; o'clock in 00­

cordance wi th the usual custom, tomorrow morning, and we

would ask that your Honor set this matter for hearing be­

fore the court, before whom it properly belongs, and by

whom it must be decided, at 9 o'clock tomorrow mmrning.

We Vlant an opportuni ty to look into this matter and present

our side, if we have any side to the matter, to the court,

and v/ould ask your Honll7r toset this matter for 9 otclock

tomorrow morning b~fore you resume the trial of the c~se of

the people of the State of California, versus Darrow.

We certainly have some rights in this matter, and it is

distinct surprise to us.
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1 THE Coum : 'When v; ere the affi davi t s serv ed on you?

2 11[R FORD: Just now; just at this moment in court.

3 1\J[R APPEL: It is a mere matter of courtesy to serve him

4 with an affidavit. These gentlemen do notseem to uni er­

5 ~and their position, your Honor. They are prosecutors.

6 }JfR FREDERICKS: Now, may it please the court, this issue

7 is very plain, and simple. We donot 'want to cha JB e counsel

8 en the other' side wi th trying to get som ething in here,. and

9 I am not going to do so.

10 THE COURT: No, don't do it.

11 UR FREDERICKS: This case is the case of the People of the

12 State of California, vs. Clarence Darrow, that is an a:tion

13 "VVe propose to try in this lawsuit. ~ do not intend in

14 thi s lawsuit to try anybody else. Thi s is an.affidavi t

15

16

17

18

upon which might be based a citation for contempt of court.
contempt of

The courts have universally determined that a court pro-
~

ceeding is in the na ture of a criminal proc eeding, and a

criminal trial, charging a certain separate person with the

19 crime of contempt of court. NoVI , if any person has com-

20 f ;o."mitted the crll."lJ.e of contempt of court, t-l1at is a matter UL

21 tl!Dis court to hear and determine at a proper time and in

22 a me.nn'er specified in the code by peti tion filed, and an

23 oppo rtuni ty to f i 1e . an an swer, and then a hearing on the

24 facts. Now, then, vmat has tl~t to do with this case

25 in which this jury is impaneled. They know nothing now 0

26 the proceedings or of the affidavit about which counsel
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1 complains, and certainly, they should be kept in toot sit-

2 uation. That is the thing that counsel is arguing for,

3 keep the jury so it will only hear the evidence, ~nd that

4 is what ":;e \'"dsh. The 'hvo cases are absolutely separate

5 and have nothing to do wi th each other. 'fuis is a separ­

6 ate charge which counsel makes against another man that

7 probably this court never heard of before.

8 UR ROJERS: I beg your pardon, his name was mentioned time

9 and again. You deny it has any thing to do wi th the case.

10 We have the affidavit, Itl will convict Clarenc e Darrow".

11 lim FREDERI eKS : That is what your affidavit is.

12 lIR ROGERS: That is what he says.

131m :EREDERICKS: No, he di dn' t say anything of the kind.

14 lfR ROGERS: That is what the paper says.

15 MR FREDERICKS: But we are not chargeable ',vi th v/hatevery

16 newspaper may say in this tOVJIl in regard to thi s case or any

17 other case, an~ the People do not propose to be chargeable

18 ',vi th what ne...·rspap ers may say. I do not believe, wi thout

19 knowing anything about the case, that the man \mo is guilty

20 the re, made an-y such s ta t ament.

21

22
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24
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26



THE COURT: I think that in a measure, at le-ast, the Distric
t.o

Attorney's position here should be conceded this extent,
1\

that the hearing on this !ll8.tt er be continued until the regu-

153
1 I do not believe that that is a true statement, and I do not

2 believ.e that he ever made such a statement to a newspaper,

3 and I do believe, if the newspaper had any obj ect in publish

4 ing that that object was friendliness for the defense.

5 That is what that means, if it means anything. It does not

6 come from the II' osecution, and it is not friendly to the

7 prosecution and any newspaper that would pUblish an article

8 such as that does it ignorantly or does it intentionally

9 in opposition to the prosecution. That is What that article

10 means, it doesn't mean that it is inspi.red by the prosecu­

11 I tion in any way, shape or form. I can see through a grind­

12 stone that has a hole mn it. Now, t.his jury has nothing

13 to do vrlth that affidavit, that is another matter that we

14 will take up and fight out on its merits at the proper time,

15 and this is not the proper time nor the proper occasion.

161m ROG"'R'RS: If your Honor pleases, the court consists,

17 according to Black~tone, of the Judge,the jury, the c~erk,

18 the sheriff and place --

19

20

21

22 lar hour when court will convene, which will be

23 morning. The jury will be here pr esent and the question of

24 Whether or not a jury should hear this matter is one that c

25 best be determined at that time. It will be necessary t

26 I should read the affida"rit here ""i'[,ery carefully and'
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1 proper that the District Attorney should have an apportunJ. ty

2 to go into it.

3 MR ROG:F.RS: If your Ronor please, he says, lIin order to pre-·

4 sent our sid'=." There cannot be "our side II to this thing.

5 ~ffi FR'RD"PRICKS: Then, we will not II.' esent any side.

6 lnR ROGFRS: This is one of the most outrageous things that

7 ever happened in a trial of any case. I went through San

8 Francisco, and I know what I am talking about. Now, if your

9 Honor pleases, I do not obj ect to a continuance until to-

10 I morrow morning, we are entitled to protection right now.

11 This affidavit says there were efforts to get this outrageous

12 thing to this jury, and before we go on Vie want to know what

13 has happened. We v~nt to know whether this thing ~as got to

14 the jury or not.

15 1\JR FORD: I ask that a citation be issued for the party named

16 in there, as counsel could have don e.

171m ROGffiS: TIi s name' is Rob ert :r. Fa s t er •

18 ""ffi FORD: We ask that a ci tatioll be issued for Robert :r.

19 Foster and that he be brought before the Court and your Honor

20 detertiline this matter in the proper mann er and at the proper

21 tim~, as it should be, and if Robert :r~ Foster has done these

22 things, your 'Honor can act upon it. This jury is not going

23 to act and decide 011 these facts, this is a proper matter

24 for your Honor to hear, a.nd if they were hOnest and sincere

25 in the matter they should have asked for a citation

26 affidavit. We ask that it be issued.
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;r. 1 UR. ROGFRS: we do ask for it.
I

2 1lR FORD:: And your Honor is the only tribunal VJhich can

3 pass upon the matter.

4
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1 THE COURT: You join wi th the defense?

2 ],{R:If(OOID: We join wi th the defense.

3 l'JR APPEL: We don't think, under the present conditions,

4 tha t we shoul d be proc eeding wi th th e trial of thi s case

,5 until this'matter is -- until we commenc e anew.

6 THE COURT: There is this important feature that you have

7 suggested, if there has been an attempt made that is sue­

8 cessful--

9 MR APPEL: There is another thing, your Honor. These

10 gentlemen' cannot represent, this man.' They cannot speak for
,

11 him. They ought to join us --

- 12 MR FREDERICKS': Weare notspeaking for him _.:..

13 JRR APPEL: You: did say that.

14 MR FREDERICKS: We are sp eeking for the prosecution of Clar­

15 ence Darrow. We don't propose toot the defense shall get
..

16 anything before this jury that they should not get before

17 them. That is our side.

18, l!R APPEL: You got this in there. We h8V'e a right to

19 answer.

20 TEE COUll': Whatever may have been said, it appears now the

26 , application is made. The newspaper article referred to

ished for contempt of cotlrt. ' The court' is, at, the present

time; not fully advised as to the basis upon '.vhich that

defense, by its affidavit" and the prosecution b~ its state­

mEmt made through Mr Ford, asks the' court to issue a cita­

tion for 1fr Foster ,to sho'Wc ause why he should not be pun-

21

22

23

24

25
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room -

MR FREDERICKS: I want to say this has gone about as far

as a man wi th red blood in hi s veins can stand.

MR ROGERS: I have some and you can start any time you Ylant

was hastily glanc ed wer by me this morning. I just had

a very brief glance at it, and other important matters at­

tracted myattention, and I did not read it, and have not up

to this good hour, read it, and I think the matter should

have more deliberation and c ollsideration and really go over

until tomorrow morning at 9 :30 o'clock. As to ".nether or

not it shall be taken up in th e presenc e of the jury is a

matter to be determined at that time, and is not determ­

ined now. If there is any question, however, as to whether

or not an atternptv.as made to get this particular article

to the jury, that ES a matter I think that calls for im­

mediate investigation at this time. If counsel for the de­

fense desire to make any shovrlng along that line --

UR ROGERS: If you \ull ci te lir Fost~r here, I "".ant to put

h im on the stand. Mr FOster has been h ere in the court

MR FREDERICKS: The absurdity to inject the Hational Erec­

tors Association before this jury. Now, keep it out.

THE COURI': When yqu hare all cooled dff, we will go on

wi th this argument.

11:!R FREDERICKS:· There is just one thing I want to call t

court's attention to --

to.
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THE COURr: Mr Rogers has the floor.

MR FRlmERICKS: Let us confine it to the case and not in­

j ect things in here.

MR FORD: If the court please, I ask that the court excuse

the jury \l1ile V~ argue any legal point before the

jury, ::nd I think it is the duty of the co~rt, and I ask

the court to do it.

THE COURT: I am not aWare there is any legal plbint before

the court. It is a question '.mether or not the citation

too t the d efens e and prosecution have joined in requesting

shall be taken up •. It does not see.m to me there should be

so muc h heat over somet bing you bo th want.

}/ffi FREDERICKS: "lNha t ha s the jury to do yli th it?

THE COURl': I have nO! idea what :M:r Rogers expects to ad­

dress himself to, unle1JS it is an improper attempt to get

something before th e jury.

MR FREDERICKS: Well, we will listen to 1!r Rogers' argument

and see if he doesn't get something before this jury the t

is improp er.

TEE COURT: I have £Nery confidenc e in ur Rog ers.

lfR ROGERS: l,{r Robert J. ]bster, th e man mentioned in th e

effidavit, ~nd for whom citation has been requested to be

issued, has been in the court room, ~nd as I understand it,

every day' during the trial, ~nd in view of the fact that

we desire an immediate hearing, I st~gest that the cita­

tion issue forthwi th, ~nd I think HI' Foster c an be pro­

cured forthwi th, ::l.nd thereupon we ,7.ill proc.e<0~:dW
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1 vestigation of the most material matter connected with the

2 affidavit, and that is the attempt to reach the jury

3 wi th hi s s ta t ement ,

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

25

26



-160 i
. ,

1 which vre believe he had reason to be1i eve, according to our

2 affidavit/would be excluded from evidence, and Which we con-.
3 tend and swear, according to the affidavit, were made for

4 the purpose of reaching the jury. Now, I think that that kin

5 of a question, if your Honor please, takes precedent over an

6 other question, and while I express here now the absolute

7 confidence whihh J feel, that the jury has not been and

8 cannot be influenced or reached by any such consideration,

9 that does not alter the fact that it is one of the prides of

10 our jurisprudence that this kind of thing cannot happen,
IW.

11 and I ask your Honor, to inves tigate it forthwith. Tf your II I

12 Honor Vlants to put this jury out, good and well;
!~

it is with

18 n FREDffiICKS: We are perfectly willing.

19 • MR ROGERS: Let a citation issue ~~forthwith qand we will

13

14

15

16

17

in your Honor's discretion so to do. 1fr Foster ought to come

in here and tell, before we t~e one more syllable of eviden

how he tried to influence this jurY,and hOW, eo far as he

was concerned, he sought to convict this defendant upon absO

1ute1y i11egaI~eans.
. \

20 put Foster in here and see what Foster has done.

21 THE COURT: I am not going to issue a citation for any man

22 to shoW' cause why he should not be punished for contempt of

23 Court until I know more about the basis for it than I do

24 but we will stop proceedings at this point, while I read

25 over. It will te:l,ke a little time. The jury may beexcu.sed

26 for tan minutes and the Court will be in recess for ten mi
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1 (After recess.)

2 lnt ROGERS: Before the jury comes in I think that .it might b

3 well to file a supplemental affiaavit in which shall clppear

4 all the situation of the article upon the page of the news­

5 paper which was 011 the fron t page, an affidavit shoVi"ing

6 that the 'Examiner is placed all along the route of the jury,

7 in windows and upon display stands where the large heading

8 which appears in the affidavit 1 might undoubtedly be seen

9 by the jury, 8.nd the heading, contains the vicious part of

10 the article.

11 MR FREDRRICKS: I don't know whether it would be of any

12 assistance to the court to state that matters of this kind

13 in the twelve years that I have been engaged in the p:' alctim'e

14 of criminal law, coming into court in the middle of a trial,

15 it has been the universal custom of the court to put them

16 off and have them heard outside of the Court or outside of

17 the hearing of the case. I never have knovID, and I have seen

18 this thing happen a dozen times or attempted a dozen times ­

19 I have seen it attempted a dozen times, and there never has

20 yet been Jr ecedent where the Court has given it one moment~

21 time in the presence of the jury.

22 }[R ROGERS: If counsel will mention any case in which it

23 hClppened, I will be glad to hear it.

24 ·MR F.!?FDERICKS: It happened at the bribery cases at Ocean

25 Park, where the District Attorney himself was cited

26 contempt of court and the attempt ~s made to

I
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1 It happened in the Connors case before ~udge Willis, vfuen

2 ~udge Willis at once P»Lt it on to the next day. Those are

3 two that come to my mind right now.

4 THE COURT: In view of the request Mr Rogers made to file

5 supplemental affidavits, --

6 1m ROGJJ'R.S: -- I didn't request it, I simply said it might be

7 well to file it,if your Honor desires it. I think the affi­

8 davit is sufficient for a citation and the other matters

9 is a matter of proof, but if your Honor has any doubt about

10 it,

11 THE COURT: It strikes me that the matter you have stated

12 in the last few minutes is more important than anything

13 set forth in the affidavit. These matters, no matter how

14 vicious, if they never did reach the jury or the eyes of

15 the jury never did rest upon it, -- these matters would be

16 reprehensible, there is no doubt about that, but the sting

17 would be taken away from it if it never reached the eyes of

18 the jury.
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1 If, as you say, the situation you have just suggested, you

2 want to set that out, it strikes me, on first thought, that

3 woul d be th e most important fac tor.

4 MR ROGERS: Aside from tmt, if your Honor desires such an

5 affidavit, we will file it, but aside from th at, whether

6 or not the attempt to reach the jjtry, was successful, the

7 purpose is plain, and aside from ')!hether it reached the

8 jury or not, we are enti tl ad to h,ave the cou rt unaffec ted,

9 we are entitled to have witnesses unaffected by any such

10 things as that.

11 THE COURT: It is a most reprehensible practice for par-

try their cases in the newspapers, and attempt to prejudice

ties connected directly or indirectly, remotely or simply

001 ecting

La'wsuits of this

vdth one side of the other, to

That is the purpose and obj ect of the jur:rand no other.

open court, and whatever their v erdict may be, it is one

trot the public generally Vlill recognize to be a just one.

That is the :reason we spent all these days in selecting

that class of men.

system, that is the reason we spent mys here in

as a matter of sentiment,

kind must be tried in court, and in open court, must be

determined by the dfidence that is introdlmed in open court

public opinion in a matter of this kind.

jurors who are men of such standing in the community that

wha tever their verdict may be, their verdict be based

entirely upon what is heard and ..-hat they hear and see in
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1 Mr Fredericks: That is our position, your Honor. We want

2 to keep everything alWay from them. There is anoth er f ea­

3 ture I would like to call to the attention of the cou It,

4 the petition and citation for contempt of court, as your

5 Honor knows, is a criminal proceeding, a separate criminal

6 ~maIge, charging a man with the commission of an offense,

7 and, ~s conn 001 s;ays, it will be the duty of the District

8 Attorney to represent the state in that case as in any,

9 other, and representing the state in t m t case, and repre­

10 senting the state in this case, you can readily see, is

11 1 not a matter that one man woulddare to undertake. While,

12 if those things are true -- and I do not believe the'J are

13 if those things are tIjle, there is a case for someone to

14 prosecute. ur Foster has no connection 'Ifi th this case, so

15 far as I know, at present is not a wi tness in this case,

16 so far as I know, at present hisadvic,e and consideration is

17 not asked for, songht or given in this case, nei ther is

18 too t of the Uational Erectors Associa tion given in this

19 case. ']his is a case in ,:Jhich the People of the State of

20 California are plaintiff, and vIe are endeavoring to per-

21 form our sworn dutjes. It is t rue th~e are undoubtedly

22 those who sympathize wi th us, and th ere are undoubtedly

23 those vmose sympath.ies are cgainst us; there_are those 'who,

24 by reason of their sympathies would be glad to help us and

25 have helped us, ~nd do help us, ,just as there are those', 0

26 by reason of their ::ympathies, YfOuld be glad to hind· er
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but, through it all, the state of California by its sworn

officers, has a firm grip on this prosecution, and does not

propose to permit anyone else thm the state of California,

to· participate in this pro secution in its management 0 r di­

rection. liI'ow, that is as far as we can go. liI'ow, if some­

one \mo has in his sentiment, ~llowed himself, as coun reI

allges Hr Foster to be, has done something that is indiscret

something that is ,vorse than that, and that is contempt of

court -- and I cb not think he has, -- but if he has, of

course, we are not in a position where we \vouldcare to go

and say, ItI am the pUblic prosecutor, and I am goi~ to

prosecute this man and you must keep your hands off. 1t We

do not yfish to put ourselves in that posi tion; we cannot

do that. If he is to be prosecuted, then toot prosecution

nust be taken by some disinterested person, by someone \vho

has no interest in this case, in order that it may be a fair

and prop er hearing. Blt, as it stands now, it shoul d be tak

entirely outaf this case, and if he has committed an of­

fense, he should be punished for it, but it should not be

permitted to influence this case.

THE COURI': The only question is, whether you desire the

time to file further affidavits.

HR ROGERS: Yes sir., I desire to file affidavits,nnless

citation has been ordered as agreed to.

THE COURT: There has been none ordered.

HR FREDERICKS: Then, t here are proc eeding s t hat the 00-
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1 fendant is entitled to, and opportunity to answer and to

2 hire an at torney to defend him, and all that.

3 TIm COURI.': SUfficiBBtunto the day is the evil thereof.

4 1,ffi FREDERICKS: That is not a matter to be taken up now.

5 MR ROGERS: I think it is, if your Honor pleases, if the

6 jury, through this outrag eous article --
,

7 THE COURT: I have read it. I have read i:t since the court

8 adjourned, although I read the heading this morning.

9 MR FREDERICKS: ],[us t we go on and hang thi s defendant on

10 a tree 'Ni thout his having a chance to having a layvyer and

11 being heard?

12 l!.R ROGERS: No, no. He can have the District Attorney to

13 defend.. him, as it is appaeent he '!Jill have, because

14 the District Attorney sGrs he does not believe he committed

15 the crime, of course, he is not in a very good mood to pro-

16 s ecut e him.

17 JltR FREDERICKS: For that reason I delt'line to.

18 lrR ROGERS: Ee says he does not wish to prosecute him.

19 UR :EREDERICKS: I eli d not say t mt.

20 THE COURT: That is not fair to the District Attorney.

21 HR ROGERS: Then, I "vi thdraw it

22 THE COURT: He can call upon the State's Attorney.

23 HR FREDERICKS: The court can appoint a spooial prosecu-

24 tor.

25 JiLR ROGERS: I do not think we ought to go on wi th this

26 jury with that crticle staring before them from one plac
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to another along the route.

THE COU1~: I~ it is tTIle, then that is another question.

Have you made StIch an investigation?

]!fR ROGERS: yes sir, I hme sent a man along the road, and

I have foun d plac e aft e r plac e and newsboy aft e r newsboy

had that article on the front page, and there is nothing to

it but four-inch big black type at the top, undoubtedly

for the purpos eof displaying it before the jury, it is

no t a front pag e story.

MR FREDERICKS: Those are matters Mr Foster is entitled to

hme tried. He is presumed to be innocent until

proven gUilty, and he ought to be given time to hire a

la...vyer.

'[R APPEL: 1,fr Foster -- why is counsel so solicitous to de­

fend him?

UR ]RE])ERICKS: A square deal, that is all.

HR APPEL: We a sk tile t an inj unc tion be issued on our affi-

davit restraining him in the citation. Now, this is a mat-

ter that is due to us in the course of this trial.

MR ROGERS: I ...vill tell you ,vhat has happened, tba t arti­

clesays that ur Foster is stopping at the Und.on League

ClUb, not a public hotel at all, where one of the jurors,

Hr GOlding, is a m€lllber, a most unique and remarkable con­

dition of things, and I ......ant to kno'lJ' something about this,

if your Honor pleases, and I think I am entitled to

lrR FREDERICKS: I do not think counsel is serious.
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1 HR ROGERS: I am serious about this. v.hy do es a man like
.,

2 W. ,1. Foster stop at the Union Le8(Sue Club where }"fr Gold­

3 i ng , one of' the jurors, is a member?

4 1fR FREDERICKS: BIt he is not inattendance.

5 TEE COURI': I cannot follow you. Golding, al though a mem.­

6 ber of' the Union League Club, I think he mid in his exam­

7 ination, is not and will not beat the Union League Club

8 until thi s case is over. I cannot follow you.

9 UR ROGERS: You might look into it and see "-vhat this thing

10 shows for.

11 THE COURT: yeS, I am perfec tly willing to and vvi 11 help you

12 look into it. The court is interested "in this matter;i!

13 these things that you suqgest, if they are true, why, it

14 is undoubtedly an unl~vful int erference with the proc ess and

15 proceedings of the court and is contempt, but it must be

16 sho"wn in an 0 rderly and proper mann ere

17 ]fcR ROGERS: If your Honor desires that affi davit, \va will

18 file supplementalaffidavits forthvdth.

19 THE COURT: In regard to the matters you have SUCSgested as "

20 being of prime importance here.

21 1I1R ROGERS: All right, sir.
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Youragreed was an attempt to interfere with this case.

well as myself, that that kind of thing ought not to exist

in this country, and that no man ou~~t to be put to trial

under those circumstanc es, but your Honor thought at that

time, and I agreed with you, there was nothing your Honor

could do, and immediately there follows this scandalous thi g

any member of the steel tlllust or the erectors' association.

intimidate and prejudice our witnesses, to give us the most

queer trial in America, we do not intend to stand that

unless we have had this produced

'MR. FRED:!i'RICKS: That is what we want to do, we want to try

him on the level and we vant to try him squarely.

MR ROOERS: Your Honor I you will remember I called your

attention to another attempt to int8rfere with this case,I

called your Honor's attention, in the presence of 'fr Ford,

to an article published in the same paper which vie both

and we do not want to go on \nth this kind of thing,

coming up day after day against us, wi th every attempt to

169
1m mRED"H'EICKS: In the meantime, are we going to trial in

the case of Clarence Darrow for bribery?

UR ROG"filR.S: Yes, we are going to try him squarely and we are

going to try him without interference of Robert J. FOster or

Honor expressed then, if I may be penni tted, the desire tha

that sort of thing stop. Your Honor said at that time, and

said it with the approbation of the District Attorney as

Darrow.

'.ffi FREDERICKS: The question is, are we going to try Clar
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1 \{R ROG~S: Yes, and we are going to try him fairly and

2 squarely.

3 IlR FR~RRICKS: The prosecution has nothing to do with

4 that--

5 1{R ROGERS: Then how did General otis send that dispatch?

6 lIR FREDRRICKS: General otis has no more to do with this

7 pr9secution than you have to do with it.

8 "MR FORD: I would suggest that your Honor assign this

9 contempt proceeding to some other Court, and that we proceed

10 with the trial of this case.

11 1,{R ROGERS: I do no t wonder, your Honor, that counsel wants

12 to get out "from under.

13 1!R FORD: I object to any such ungentlemanly language, as

14 "trying to run out from und er ".

15 TH"B': COURT: mreally fail to see what this- is all about.

16 There is no difference of opinion between counsel on either

17 side, and the court, but what ought to be done here, perhap

18 aside from the question that I wonder how much excmtement

19 there would be here if th ere ViaS a real differenc e of'

20 opinion. There is no question,but what under the facts

21 set forth in this affidavit, and the facts stated by "lI.'!'r ROge

22 and presented in the affidavit, there should be a citation

23 issued to R. ~. Foster and he should be brou~~t before the

24 Court to show cause" why he should not be punished for con-

25 tempt.

26 MR ROGERS: Will your Honor give me fifteen minutes to

draw that affidavit? I need that time, because I want
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1 investigate it before we go on , I have some infonnation I

2 do not Care to disclose uhtil I see whether we will get

3 the process of this court.

4 MR FRlIDERICKS: Here is a man named Foster who is charged

5 with contffinpt of court, he has a right to be heard, he \nll

6 hire lawyers, and they "Will file their are wers to the

7 petition and the matter has to be heard, there is a regular

8 orderly waY,for this proceeding.

9 THE COURT: And that regular orderly way will be followed.

10 But the question iS,whether or not the exigency of the case

11 ' is such that the Court will take a recess at this time, to

12 enable Mr Rogers to prepare his affidavit.

13 }'ni ROGF.RS: Fifteen minutes will do.

14 THE COURT: He knows and what might be required - if you

15 insist on the matter -- ?

16 lffi ROGERS: Yes sir, I do.

17 TJrE COURT: : I will compromise with you and I will give

18 y ou ten minutes.

19 ~!R ROG~S: I do not think I can get a stenographer and this

20 affidavit cannot be made out in ten minut es.
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-~etel THE COURT: Cannot you dictate it to one of the court re­

2 porters and file it a little later?

3 MR ROGERS: I would ask your Honor to investigate it,

4 there has been too much of this case.

5 THE COURT: I fully agree with you there has been too much

6 of it. I think there is nothing more reprehensible in this

7 country than the attempt to prejudice either one side or the

8 other in the minds of the public by newspaper articles be-

9 fore the case is presented. There is only one way to try

10 a lawsuit.

111m FREDERICKS: We have been trying to avoid that.

12 TIm COURT: I am not criticising you in any shape or form,

13 I am trying to agree with Mr Rogers' statement. I think

14 we are all of one notion. The Court will take a recess

15 fifteen minutes.

i th 16 (

17 (After recess)

18 THE COURT: Gentlemen, I have car£?fully read the affidavit

19 of Mr Earl Rogers, H HAppel, W H Dehm and HL Giesler, and

20 the supplementary affidavit filed within the last few minute ­

21 I should not say they are filed, but I order them now to be

22 . filed, and from the reading of tllose affidavits it appears

23 there has been some attempt, at least, by R J Foster, to act

24 and unlawfully interfere with the process and proceedings

25 of the Court and it is ordered that a citation be issued

26 directing Mr R J Foster to appear before this Court tomor
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row morning at 9:30 o'clock to show cause why he should not

be punished for contempt.

1m FREDERICKS: If the Court please, in that connection,

as I stated a while ago, it is the duty. of the prosecution\

to represent the prosecution in a contempt case, and I feel

by reason of my personal knowledge of matters and my posi­

tion in this case,that I am disquaibified from acting with

that deliberation which a prosecutor should, and I would

like to ask the Court to appoint someone to represent the

prosecution from the bar from Los Angeles, someone disin-

terested in this case, and I should also like to ask that

the citation include the writer of the Examiner who wrote

that article and those articles, and also the man on the

Examiner mlo wrote the headings, because I believe that if

there is any contempt been committed it has been committed

there, and the ·a.ffidavi t is sufftl.cient to cover such a ci t8.-

tion.

THE OOURT: I doubt the sufficiency of the affidavit, but

I assume there are a great many writers on the Examiner and

there are probably seyeral men engaged in the business of

making headings on the Examiner, ror:all I know. I do

not know who to cite.

1m FREDERICKS: Well, a custom that has been follo~ed in

the Courts in cases of that kind, I remember once ~~en the

Los Angeles Times ViaS cited for contempt. of court for

the publication of an article, and the heads of the
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1 were cited and they are responsible. I think your Honor

2 THE COURT: But there will have to be some particular

3 person cited. I cannot simply issue a citation to whoever

4 ~Tote that article?

5 IdR FREDERICKS: We will be sufficiently interested to fur-

6 nish the name of that person to the Court, because we be­

7 lieve there is a systematic attempt on the part of someone

8 on the Examiner to get the stuff before the public, and it

9 is inimicable to the prosecution, and we want the matter

WeWe want to find out Who is doing that.10 I thrashed out.

11 . want to include the other article published the other day

12 purporting to be the statement of General Otis, and we will

13 sift this thing out, if the Court will appoint a prosecutor

14 to handle it.

15 THE COURT: Who is aeputy Attorney General here now?

16 MR BREDERICKS: G~orge Beebe.

17 THE OOURT: Mr Beebe, will you act in this matter? I will

18 appoint you as special prosecutor to look into this matter.

19 I think it is proper the Deputy Attorney General, not being

20 interested I assume you are not interested or have parti

21 cipated on ei tOOr side of th is rna tter?

22

23 I
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1 HR BEEBE: Ict'annot say I an interested. I don't know S1.y

2 reason why I should be.

3 THE COURT: I will appoint Ur George Beebe, Deputy Attor-

4 ney General, to ret as Special Proescutor in this matter.

5 Anything further relative to the contempt proceeding s?
, ,

6 HR ROGERS: No.

7 THE COURT: Call in the jury.

8

9 (J"nry returned into court room.)

10

11 GEORGE N. LOCKWOOD, recall ed on behalf of

12 the people, testifi ed as follo'\iVs:

13 DIRECT EXAMINATION resumed

14 THE COUT : what was the number of the indictment on trial

15 in department No.9 at· the time of the occurrenc e referred

16 to?

17

18

19

20

lJR FORD: 6939.

THE COURT: Are you sure that is the number?

lim FORD: yes sir.

THE COUR'r: When cour.t adj ourned Saturday, a somewhat

21 important ruling was taken under .advisement-, and numerous

The court

pas ex~ined those authorities with· as much care as the

time ~."ould permit, and unl ass coun salon ei ther side have

something "Nhich they desire to say in amplification of

the authorities sUbmitted, the statements made and argum

and ve~- helpful authorities were submitted.

24
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1 presented before adj ournrnent on Eaturday, the court is ready

2 to rul e.

3 l'JR FORD: I do not believe, if your Honor please, that I

4 aalle d yourattention to the case of people versus Glass.

5 THE COURT: I read tlnt case very varefully, thedefend-

6 an t called it to my attention, and I read it very carefully

7 and I expmt to base my ruli~g almost entirely on the case

8 of Peopl e v erSL1.S Glass.

9 I,m FORD: In that case the distinctions of the class of

10 evidenc a, vmether another offense which should be rej ected

11 and tho se \'lhich should be admitted, were brought in 61i-

12 dence--

13 THE COURT: I read that crase, and I &pec t to base my d e-

14 cision on that very case. It is the case I hmre given most

15 especial attention to '!lith reference to this ruling.

16 The question before the court "was an obj ec tion to certain

17 evidenc e and a motion to strike out. The objection is

18 overruled and the motion to s trike out will be denied. It

19 may simplify matters by making a very brief statement of

20 the connec tion. The ruling is based upon the rul e that

21

22

evidence of other similar acts must be confined toattempts

to bribe or unduly influence some oth er person connected

23 \iIi. th the t rial of Peoule vs. :r. P.. McNamara, under indict­
j -

24 ment lIo .6939. It is not for the mere purpose of sho~~ng

25 other distinct crimes, 'but as sho......ing tInt the specific

26 act of bribery charged, \-.as but a part execution of



1 conspiracy or scheme which contemplated the certainty of a

2 plot of conspiracy to prevent the jury bringing in a

3 verdict of guilty. If such testimony can be presented it

4 yn.ll be competent e.nd will be received by this cou It.

5 l[R FREDERICKS: Iv.es just reading the record, your Honor t

6 to see \7hera I had I eft this 'wi tness in the narrative.

7 THE COURT: I might add, in connec tion \"n. th that ruliJ1g,
-

8 that the introduction of evidence vdll not be allowed to go

9 any fL1rther, the introduction of evidence will not be per­

10 I mit-ted to go any further than to evidence, if any there be,
I unduly.

11 of acts or attempts to bribe orl\influence some other juror

12 or other person connected with the trial of People vs.

13 J". B. McNanara, under indictment No.6939.

14 1{R FREDERICKS: All right, your Honor. Shall we proc eed?

15 TEE COURI': Yes sir.

16 If

17
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1 1,ffi FR'BIT)"E'RICKS: The last answer, if I may read it, just two

2 lines, in order to get the witness at the point where he

3 left off. you r8mffinber, Yr Lockwood, you were narrating -­

4 TIrE COURT: One moment, Captain. I had my transcript but.
5 left it in the courtroom. I ~nt to have that before me.

6 1m ROGHRS: I do not believe that this question presented

7 the subj ect generally at all, but T believe your 'Honor's

8 view ls undoubtedly correct as to this question. I have so

9 argued it at all times, as I said to· ,your Honor the other

10 day, -- r do not beaieve this question presented the issue

11 at all, and while your Honor --

12 TH"R COURT: T was assuming that it did.

13 ~ffi ROGBRS: I do not think it did.

14 TH~ COURT: And acted accordingly. However, it is just as

15 well, it came perilously near it.

16 MR ROGTmS: I urrl erstand your Honor I s vi ew of it.

17 THE COURT: I think it is a good time to settle that ques-

21 lffi ROG~S: Just so we understand the situation.

22 TH"R COURT: statement made in court,for the information of

23 counsel, as to what the rulings along this line vall be?

241m ROG"P'RS: Yes sir.

25 ~m FRlIDc:nICKS: We will govern ourselves accordingly,

26 your 'Honor, in our questions. Page 138. You were narra
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1~91
Yr Lockwood, the conversation which occurred between you and

Bert Franklin in his office here in Los Angeles, being the

first con'Tersation that you had had with ",r Franklin, as

you stated, in Los Angeles or elsewhere, in regard to the

question of accepting a bribe for purposes you have referred

6 to. And you stated, T think, What the date of that meeting

7

8

9

was; T think the 9th. A The 9th.

Q' Of November? A Yes sir.

Q Along about in the forenoon,sometime, you said?

10 A Yes sir.

Ji
ll <' And the last answer you made was, llJ:fe told me that he

2 had already one juror there, that 'WaS fixed, and that T
calling

13 knew that juror better than T did him. II Now, then/your

14 attention~o that answer, did you know through reading the

15 press or otherwis e, who had been acc epted on th e 'l\cNamara

16 jury at that time?

17 11m. ROG'ffiS: Objected to as incompetent, irrelevant and

18 immaterial and hearsay, and no foundation laid.

19 THE COURT: Overruled.

20 \{R ROGmRS: ~ception.

21 A yes sir.

22 1!R FREDPRICKS: And did you know one of the jurors there?

23 ( A
\

One and only one.

24 "'ffi ROGERS: The same obj ection.

25 TIrE COURT: Overruled.

26 1·m HOllERS: Rxception.



Robert Bain.A'What v.as the name of the one you knew?

1 ~t'JhReFRonFJ)e:.'ICKS: That is you did not know any others, but

2 ~ A Just one.

3 ~
4 1m ROG~S: The same objection, please, to that question.

5 It was are wered before

6 THE COURT: Overruled. Yes.

7 lu{ FR~~ICKS: NOW, I haven't in mind, and don't know

8 Whether you have everything younstated as to that first

9 conversation at that time, and do you now remember anything

10 further that was stated at that conversation that you did,
!

11'

12

13
•.•• -',> :

not give Saturday morning? A I remember nothing only the

,mode in which he answered me,as to how the balance of the,
.'payment could be made. /

14 -:Q, What did he say? A He offered the name of a man

15~living out in Tnglewood, as a proper person to hold that

wife wants to be careful about how she spends money~just now

do~7·t"";~~tOt~·fl·Oiir-rsh"'·'~-;~~h-~f'·-it.·''-J --
I

24~ 1m A'PPli"L: We move· to strike that out,your nonor,on the

2ql"I~round that that is a matter outside of the issue in this
-:. ~4 ,' .. '

,26" 'case, and outside of the evidence; that it is not a dpc'
J I.tion or act on the part of a juror, which ini tself shows

'. ~ .. :it was in view of any conspiracy. Incompetent,irrelevan
tt" immaterial and hearsay. scanJb'Jd by

16 "Foney.

17:Jq Now what money was that? AUhat was the money that was

'18 }(;, be paid the $2000 or $1500 and $2000 if he could get
, . "J~

t~/ {",the money, in case I accepted the proposition ,and w'ent on
'. f :.
~, ... '.',21 1.,;the jury and brought in a verdict of not guilty, and further

',21 '·he told me, he said, "How if this thing goes through, your
-'-"~'--."-'~ . -

---~--"-'-""""""-'-~"--



the last person that I would want to know anything about it.

~ 181
,Smitq MR FRETIERICKS: We think it is very material, your Honor;

2 part of the conspiracy showing the method to be used to

3 conceal a crime.

4 THE COURT: Overruled.

5 1m ROGERS: Exception.

6 MR FREDERICKS: No~, anything else at the first meeting

'7 that you think of?) A I to Id him that in case too t the

----~ - -'8/ 'matter went through as outlined, that my wi. fe would be ,
.f
!

10 !~ APPEL: We move to strike out that statement on the groun

11 it is incompetent, irrelevant, inRnaterial and hearsay, and

12 that the views of the v.i tness on the stand at that time was,
I

13 at this time, or at any time, are not binding upon the

14 defendant.

15 MR FREDERICKS: Part of the conversation.

16 THE COURT: Overruled.

17 llR APPEL: Exception.

jUdge a half hour, that is exclusive -- that was all in rega

that took place at that time.

And that, as far as I can tell, is all the conversation18

19

20

21

A'

!;ffi FREDERICKS: About how long were you up there? A I shou a

22 to thi s case. There was some other little matters.

23 Q I only want it approximately. Then where did you go;

"" 24, .~hat is, generally -- A Went home •
. ~-

25 Q

26 Q

i ~ay.

Out to your ranch? A Yes sir.

What day of the week, noro, was that? A That was Th
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1 Q Thursday the 9th of november? A Yes sir.

2 Q How, when did you see Franklin again, if at all?

3 A On tJ:,~ol~v.'ing Saturday night.
,.,...- .•...---. .....,_.•,-_.......,-""'."'~~~:~..,._......... -"""'..,,;......;.."'.,,•••.'"!

4 Q What day 0 f the month would that be? A Too t wo uld be

5 the 11th.

That was the 11th? A 11th.

7 Q Where did you see him then? A At my house near Covina.

8 Q And who was present? A No one but himself and mysel f.

9 Q What time in the evening was it? A I should judge it

10 I was about 10 o'clock.
i

11 Q

12 Q

How did he come out, do you know? A In an auto.

Was there a driver with him? A There was, an'd 0 ther

13 people, I don't know Who. There was one or more ladies in

14 the au to.

15 Q IVhere -did the conversation occur with reference to

16 the automobile? A On the lawn, at the corner of the house,

17 the southwest corner.

18 Q About how far away from the automobile? A One hundred

19 feet.

20 Q And what was that conversation?

21 MR ROGERS: That is objected to as hearsay, incompetent, and

22 no foundation laid; irrelevant and immaterial.

23 THE COURT: Overruled.

24 rm. ROGERS: Exception.

2\' A We passed the time of day, "Hello Bert", "Hello

2 and I stated to him: "Bert, no use for to go any further

I
i



1 with this' transaction for I won I t have anything more to do

2 with it at all lf
• He said he was sorry and told me that the

3 proposition was still open. and if I concluded to accept it

4 to let him know. Bid him good-night, and that closed that

conversation. -r-'
Anyone else in hearing? A I think not.

\Vhat was the next thing you did with reference to that

9 ME APPEL: Wait a moment. We object now. if your Honor

10 please. to any acts, declarations of this witness, on the

11 ground it is incompetent. irrelevant and immaterial, and no

12 foundation laid; hearsay ahd not binding upon this defendant.
r

13 Whatever he did after that, your Honor, is not proper eVidencl,E

141m FREDERICKS: It will be seen it is absolutely material.

15 Showing the status and. relation of this witness to the fur-

16 ther transactions in the case.

17 MR APPEL: Whatever he did or said to anyone else is not

18 material.

19 I 1m FREDERICKS: I am not asking ~at he said.
I

20 MR FORD: Showing his relation to the case.

21 11'1R APPEL: His relation to the case would not bind this

22 defendant.

23 MR FREDERI CKS: It v>o uld be important why his testimony -­

24 the jury must know the relation of the witness to the case.

25 MR FORD: What he did will not affect the defendan t, but it

26 does affect his credibility.

!
I
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1 THE COURT: His creditibity is not attacked.

2 1m FREDERICKS: Well, it is absolutely a link and part of

3 the res gestae of the case. Without that the jury --

4 without the next step in this case the jury would not under­

5 stand the further transaction, and they must have those

6 things, for they must understa~d. They will be in the dark

7 wi th regard to the proceedings.

8 THE COURT: Well the object of this lawsuit, of course; is to

9 enlighten the jury as to what has happened.

10 MR FREDERICKS: That is the idea exactly.

11 MR APPEL: You canno't enlighten the jury b, hearsay eVidence.

12 ~JR FREDERICKS: We are not asking for hearsay eVidence.

13 MR ROGERS: You don't claim the defendant was there?

14 MR FREDERICKS: I am not asking him for hearsay evidence.

15 Haven't asked him for anything that was sai~.

16 THE COURT: Read that last question.. (Last question read by

17 the reporter)

18 THE COURT: I guess we will have to answer and you may have

19 la right to strike it out. I cannot anticipate what the
I

20 answer will be. The motion will be denied.

21 MR APPEL: Exception.
/"

2~ A I went to the District Attorney and told him what had
~

~~ happened •
...

24 MR FREDER ICKS: And when was that? A I can't place the

25 date. It was some time during the following week, I

26 Mn APFEL: Now, do es your Honor still insist that your

I
, i



1 Honor's ruling is right?

2 1m FEEDERICKS: Most assuredly.

3 MR FORD: Merely preliminary.

4 THE COURT: Want to move to strike it out?

5 MR FREDERICKS: Mr Lockwood, this was sometime in the fol­

6 loWing week? A I think so.

7 Q Now, let's see, that week began with Sunday the 12th an

8 by the district attorney, you reported it to J D Fredericks?

9 A Yes sir.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



VIe obj ec t to that onWait a moment.IIf.R APFEL:

}:~R FREDERICKS: Well, I cannot ask him about one day -­

everything he did in that day.

MR APPEL: Not binding upon this defendant.

THE COURT: I do not see why.

}'[R FREDERICKS: Every day, it would .take so 10l1g', and it

is so useless -- to say between tho se times --

THE COUR'r: I think tha t is the only way to present it un­

der that obj ection. Obj ection sustained.

1:iR FREDERICKS: Veryy;ell.

Q Between th e time tha t you tol d :me, talked to me about

this matter -- I suppose the record ~ill show that "me"

refers to ~. D. Fr~der~cks , District Attorney, -- did you

discuss i t ,~ri th anyone else up until the time ':h ic h you men­

tioned.

186
1 Q When VIas the next -- Ylhen was the McNamara case and

2 your participation in: i.t as a juror, next brought to your

attention by ~.nyone? A On saturday, the 25th day of

November.

Q Saturday, th e 25th day of November? A Yes sir.

Q F.ad you seen anyone in any'way connected with the case

between those times?

MRAPPEL: We object to that as innnatel'ial, incompetent,

irrelevant; calling for a conclusion; no foun dation laid,

calling for negative evidence v,ithout notice to thisdefend­

ant.

I:
5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

I
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The sheriff informs me two witnesses are here

THE COURT: The ~Qtnesses subpoenaed \mo appear here at this

time, are EOCcused un til tomorrow morning at 9 :30, and d.irec t
-,

cd to report tomorrow morming at 9!30 without further

who have been subpoenaed in connection 'wi th the contempt

proceedings. where are the witnesses?

(Here the 'ltd. tnesses come fo rVl8 rd. )

1 ground it is incompetent, irrelevant and innnaterial, hear­

2 say, no foundation laid, not binding upon thedefendent.

3 MR FREDERICKS: WiW, it shov/s this wi tness' acts.

4 MR APPEL: His rots do not bim the defendant.

5

6 T:Em COURrr:

7

8

9

10

11

12

have it.

1!R :MORTON: :Mr l!orton and 1I!r Green.

process. What are the names of the two '.vi tnesses?

TEE COURT: Thank you. F.ave you the names, Mr Clerk?

THE CLERK: Yes sir.

THE COURT: All right. Proceed ",lith this case.

THE COURT: I didn't hear it. Read it.

(Last question and obj ection read. by the reporter.)

THE COURT: 'bat obj ectionwas sustained.

Iffi FREDERICKS: Wa~ sustained?

THE COURT: yes, I think I sustained the objectkon to tbat.

Read it ~ain, Mr Reporter.) (Question read.)

1JfR FREDERICKS: There vas a question pending.

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



fhat is

18'~

1 A I think lEr Brown was called in

2 Q Well) up until the time --

3 ],fR APPEL: Wai t a moment. Does your Honor sustain th e ob-

4 jection here. and the vJitness goes on and answer?

5 my understanding.

6 IvfR FREDERICKS: The answer may be stricken out by consent

7 until t.he ruling.
,

8 THE COURT: ,I think your understandiI:\g is based upon nlY

9 misstatement. I sup:po sed) whEn the reporter read it, tmt

10 was the cpestion I had sustained the obj ection to) but it

11 seems there va s another qu estion) and there seems to be

12 0 obj ec tion.

13 ]';'rR APPEL: Oh) yes) the reporter read my obj ection.

14 TEE COURT: The reporter didn't read it) when I requested

15 it a moment fgo. What is the obj ection?

16 the ans\,ver.,

Strike out

17 lrR FREDERI CKS : It may bestricken out.' I will withdraw

18 the question.

19 TEE COURT: Very well. Th e question is vii thdravm, and

20 strike out the answer.

21 1f8. FREDEHICK.S: You say on the week beginning wi th the

26 to yourattention? A The 25th Uovember.

22

23

24

25

12th of November, you reported this matter to the District

Attorney. and you said -- I asked you then, v.hen was the

next time that this matter \~s brought to yourattention,

wba t vas the date 'when it "8S, the next time
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1 Q, 25th day of November? A yes.

2 Q What occurred at that time, in connection with this

3 case?

4 UR APPEL: We obj ect to that as incompetent, irrelevant

5 e,nd innnaterial; no foundation laid; it is hearsay.

6 THE COURT: Objection overnlled.

MRAPPEL: Ex:ception. A I came to Los .Angiles at the re­

qu est of the District Attorney --

9 UR APPEL: Now, your Honor, that is just exactly what we

10 are objecting to, the District Attorney asked him ",hat oc­

11 curred; he didn't ask him at Whose request he came or his

12 motive, and t bat y,e are obje cting to his going on here.

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1 tm FREDTl'RICKS: There is a point here which the Court will

2 probab~~ want to consider, that is the witness ' status must

3 be established, whether as an accomplice or not. Vlhether

4 he v~s an accomplice depends on the relation which he bore

5 to the case and that relation must be understood by the

6 Court, and the jury, and unless it is understood the ~ury

7 will get the mistaken idea that he was an accomplice,perhaps

8 so that his relation to the case and the district attorney

9 must be undp.rstood by the jury.

10 THE COURT: The witness has not finished his answer, and

11 there has been no objection.

/12 1m FRED"P"fRICKS: All right. Now, 1\rr Lockwood, what day of the

~3 week was the 25th of Noveml)er? A Saturday.

1 Saturday was the 25th, Sunday was ~is matter discussed

by you with anyone an Sunday? A Yes, in a measure.

16 Q With whom? A Bert Franklin.

17 Q Bert Franklin? A Yes sir.

And was it discussed with anyone on lJonday after?

yes sir.

Any time during the day? A Yes sir.

21 Q With whom? A The District Attorney.

22 Q, Who else? A l,fr Browne •

23 Q Who else? A And over the phone with pert Franklin.

24 Q 'And in the night of "fonday? A Well, the discussion

25 the phone call in the evening, and later in the n .or was

26 with Bert Franklin.
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1 Q, Rims elf? A Yes sir.

2 Q Now then, coming back to the first time when this matter

3 was discussed, or brought to your attention, after you

4 reported it to the District Attorney, Which you say was

5 the 25th of November, Saturday,.

6 MR ROG"RIRS: That is not what he said.

7 lIJR FRliiDBRICKS: Well, am T correct? A It was before that

8 I reported it to you.

Yes. But the time you discussed it with someone, after

9 Q,

10 Q.

Yes, I know you reported it to me. A Yes.

11 you reported it to me, the next time you discussed it with.

12 someone, after you reported it to me, was the 2bth?

13 A

14 Q,

yes sir.

And that was approximately how long after you reported

15 ~t to me? A Ab t t 'T h ld' d.... _ ou wo wee,1CS ,_ s ou .1U gee

16 Q, And during that two weeks where had you been?

17 A At my ranch.
C .

18 Q, j. Now, on Saturday.who did you discuss the matter wi thO

"""-J.9 .A. The District Attorney•
.'

20 '4....., 'Where? A At his residence•....

21 Q, On Saturday?

22 1fR APP~: What did he say? (Answer read.)

23 THE COURT: Won't you ~peak a little louder,please, 'so that

24 everybody can hear what you say? A Yes sir.

26 with? A Bert Franklin.

25 Q, l{R FRF,D~ICKS: Now, on SundaY,who did you discuss
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1 Q.

2 Q.

Where? A At m' residence.

Do you know when your name "vas drawn out of the jury box'?

3 ~m ROG11RS: That is obj ected to as a conclusioQ., hearsay,

4 and incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial.

5 MR FRIID:F.RICKS: The question is not to prove when it ms

6 drawn, but when he knew it was drawn.

7 TH-m COURT: That was not quite your question.

8 MR FREDERICKS: DO you know when it was drawn, that was
I

9 the question, yes or no would be the answer.

10 TIrE COURT: You can answer that yes or no.

11 I "MR FR"RD"?RICKS: Well, T will get at it in another way.

12 THE COURT: What is your answer? No'?

13 A

21 Q.

! didn't answer,.! couldn't --

On Sunday, the 26th,nbw what time of day was it you met

A ! should judge between land 2 in the aft ernoO

And vmo was present? A No one but myself.

And where was it you met him'? A At my residence.

Do you know how he came out there? A In an auto.

Anybody with him in the auto'? A There was, T don't

Was the other luaU a passenger or driver? A Driver,

22 I think.

Now, Whereabouts, on your place, your premises, was it

24 that those conversations "nth Franklin took place? A Out

25 at t'!1e 1)arn.

And with reference to the house, Where is your barn?26 Q.
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1 A In the rear of the house.

2 Q How far in the rear? A Possibly a li ttle more than

3 one hundred feet.

4 Q, And did you stay at the barn or in the barn? A Both at

5 the barn and in the barn, outside and in.

6 Q Now then,relate that conversation.

7 'ill ROGERS: That is obj ected to as incompetent, irrelevant

8 and i~~aterial,no foundation laid,and hearsay.

9 THE COURT:

10 I
11'

12

13

14·

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

Objeetion overruled.



A He came out there aLout 2 o'Clock, I should jUdge, and

I me t him on the 1 awn, ond we walke d around the hous e an d

ut to the barn. The wind va s blowing hard , and we walked

4 i n the lee of t.he tarn.IEe says, "Have youbeen served yet"?

5 And I told him no. Well, he says, "Your name was drawn

6 yesterday, and you will be served bet,ween now and tomo rrow

70rning, and hesa~s, "George,trere is $4000 in it for you,

8 and I 'want you to have it." I said to him, "Bert, if ;r go

9 into this, I don't want no mistake about the money; I want

10 it, if I accept this proposition, I VJant to be sure of it. ttY,

11 Well, he says, "There isn't a shadow of a doubt but \vmt you

12 wi11 get it." He se¥s, "Let's go into the barn." Then

13 v.e passed on into the1:arn. I I sai d to him, "Bert, the

14 500 proposition seems all straight, but this $3500, I cannot

15 see how I could be a t all sure tha tit would be paid over

16 after the matter v~s acca.mplished."j

17 Q I.didn't get the exact figure you mentioned? A $3500.

18 $500 dovm.

19 Q, All right. A \\Thy, he says, "Tb3::.'e won't be any trouble

20 at all;" and again he mentioned Captain White's name as a

21 prope:::- custodian for th e mon E.Y.

22 Q Now, just pause right there and let me ask you who is

23 Captain White? 1/ Why, he Vias the jailer under the White

24 a~ini stra tion as sheriff.

26 Q And while Franklin y,ras a deputy? A Yes sir.

25 Q And vJhile you were deputy? A Yes sir.
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1 Q You both knew him? A .Yes sir.

2 Q Vfat are his initials? A C. E.

3 Q Now, go back to your conversation in the bam.

4 A I said to him, If I don't like t:mt proposition; when the

5 case would be over, why, there might no one )mow anything

6 about thebalance of that money." IFranklin says, "Well.

7 I will tell you vhat I will do. I c anft see any other '·yay

..--8. rot of it, but Captain White~ and I will talk the matter ove

9 wi th Clarenc e Darrow, and he will fix it. If I said, If All

10 right"" and I agreed with him that I would come to Los

llA~eles the following daY, l!onday, and would call him up

12m the phone.l

13 Now, at t.he time you made this -- had this talk vrith hi

14 a bout this money, did. you have any intention ofactually taki

15 the money and going on the jury and voting as he vvished?

16 A No sir.

17

18

Q State 'mether or not youv.ere ccting with the knowledge
Attorney

and advice of the District in what you said in that regard?
"

19 11m ROGERS: Obj ected to as incompetent, irrel~t and imma­

20 t erial, and calling for a conclusion 0 r opinion; no founda-

21 tion laid and hearsay.

22 THE COURr: Overruled.

23 :MR ROGERS: Exc eption.

24 A I \',as.

26 that occurred at tmt time in the bam or at that visit?

251m FREDERICKS: Do you :::remember any other conversation
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1 MR FREDERICKS: I think that is the substance of the con-

2 versation.

3 MR ROGERS: Oh) no.

4 THE COURT: Motion to strike out is denied.

5 MR PDGERS: Exception. I ,nIl elaborate that a minute.

6 I I move tostrike it out on the ground it is/incompe-

7 ,t ent) irrelevant and immaterial) and not the substanc e or

8 pnrport of the c onversa tion) and th e witness mows what th e

9 conversation 'was, and doesn't give it.

10 1rR FREDERICKS: Give the conversation as you remember it.

11 UR APPEL: We have a motion here, ur Fredericks.

12 1fR FP.EDERICKS: I withdraw the question.

13 THE COURT: The obj ~tion is good, but I assumed counsel

14 has withdrawn th e question.

15 1~R FREDERInrK.S: I withdraw the question. Give the conver­

16 s ation in regard to the suggesting of another name as a man

17 to hold the $3500.

18

19

20

21

22

23

26

24

25
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,7-Smitl1. .& When he had suggested Captain Vlliite and I had objected

2 to him, he asked me to suggest someone and I said H H Yon­

3 kin as the proper man to act in that capacity, and he ob-

5 thousand times where he would Yonkin once.

4 jected to Yonkin and said he would trust Captain White a
X

6 Q And what further -- give the conversation as near as

7 you can remember it in regard to -- relating to his propo­

8 sition to have Captain White hold this thirty-five hundred;

9 how long he was to hold it, and all you remember about it.
/

10 A Why, he sai d like this: "There is Capta in Whi te; we

11 both know him and he is straight, and it will be perfectly

12 safe in his hands, and he will turn it over to you when the

13 trial is ended."

14 Q And what was said about the five hundred, that part,

15 to come down? A He would pay that before I went in to the

16 jury box, and he said: "I ain't got that.much money with me,

17 but I have got--" I think he said "two hundred dollars" with

18 him, and I objected to making any partial payment.

19 Q You just better put it in the first and second person,

20 I said -- A I said: "I didn't want any di viding up of

21 payments; we better have it all to once."

22 Q Did he Show you the two hundred, or any money at all, -.

23 MR TIOGBRS: That might be leading, you kno~:, under ordinary

24 circumstances. Objected to.

25 1m FREDERleKS: Was there any money shovvn there to you?

26 A Ho, there was not. He said he had it.



1 Q What time of the day, or how long did he stay? 199

2 A Oh, I should judge a half hour.

3 Q Now ~hat was said by him and by you in regard to the

4 meet~ng next day? A He asked me if I muld ca11.1 him up

5 when I came to tovm the next day. I told him I would, and

6 a.sked him what his telephone number was, and he took a card

7 out of his pocket and wrote a number on and handed it to me

8 and said, "Call that number" •

9 Q And then went away? A Yes sir.

10 Q And what did you do \\1. th regard to this case if any-

11 thing on that day further? A. :Nothing that day.

about ten in the morning.

What time did you come into I think

The next day I came to Los Angelo s.AThe next day?12 Q

13 Q

14

15 Q

16 Q
I

That next day was Monday? A Yes sir.

The 27th? A Yes sir. I would like to correct my

17 testimony in just one particular.

18 THE COURT: You may do so.
"

19 \A The day that I called on John D :B'redericks at his
\

20'\residence, was on Monda.y, instead of Saturday.
'....

21 HR Fr'EDERICKS: Now do you remember wha t time on that Mon-

22 day -- that is the Monday you are talking about now? A Yes

23 Q You remember that time on Monday \\nen you left my house

24 to go out to El Monte, do you remember what time of the day

25 that was? A Vlliy, somewhere along towards 5 o'clock.

26 Q In the evening? A Yes sir.
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Now, do you remember how long you stayed there at the

house talking? A Why, I should jUdge I was at the house

altogether perhaps three-quarters of an hour.

~'I;, Now, what time was it when you got to town?

5 A ~bout I 0' clock. .

6 Q Is that what you answered first? A No,' that is not;

7 that is the correction which I wish to make.

8 Q When you got to ~os Angeles about I o'clock on Monday

9 morning the 27th what did you do first? A I went into a

10 telephone booth at the Pacific Electric station and called

11 I up the District Attorney.

12 Q Did you get him? A I did.

13 Q Then what did you do? A I asked for a meeting with

14 him and he directed me over the 'phone to come to his resi­

15 dence, and I went out there.

16 MR ROGERS: This is assumed to be under our objection?

17 1m FREDERICKS: i'lo, your Honor, that is hearsay.

18 MR ROGERS: It is apparent this witness is shooting it in

19
so fast we cannot object.

20 MR APPEL: We objected to the same line of testimony once

21 before, the acts between the District Attorney and him, and

22 your Honor overruled us, and we thought, of course, it was

23
under the same- objection.

24 MR FREDERICKS: The question was perfectly proper.

25
THE COURT: Read the question. (Last question and answer

read by the reporter)
26
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1 1m ROGERS: I move to strike it out as not responsive, and

2 hearsay.

3 THE COURT: Strike out the answer.

4 MR FR~DEnICKS: It can hardly be expected a witness would

5 understand what part of a conversation would be admissible

6 and what would not, and that this witness would not be -­

7 TilE COURT: Answer stricken out.
into

8 MR FREDERICKS:. We are willing to go :\\'" this part, but. we

9 know if counsel objected to it that cannot be gone into.

10 Well, you went out to the house? A Yes sir.

11 Q And stayed there how long? A rmy, after I got there

12 I think I was there not to exceed three-quarters of an hour,

13 possably an hour.

14 Q . And who all did you talk wi th there?

15 MR ROG~S: That is hearsay,--

16 MR FREDERICKS: I am not asking what he said.

17 MR ROGERS: Wait a moment until I get my objection.

18 hearsay, incompetent and no foundation laid, irrelevant and

19 immaterial.

20 THE COURT: Overruled.

21 MR ROGERS: Exception.

22

23

24

25

26



1 A I talked with the District Attorney and with Browne.

2 'MR FRHIDKIRICKS: Do you know what In- pwowne's posi tion was.

3 A

4 Q,

Detective in the District Attorney's office.

When is the first time you ever met '~r :Browne in connec"

5 tion with this case? A The first timeT went to the Dis-

6 trict Attorney's office to report it.

7 Q, Well,when was the first time you ever met him in connec"

8 tion with this case, and discussed this case in his presence

9 MR ROG~S: I think he has answered? I don't think counsel

10 is entitled to change his testimony by.intimating that ie

11 does not like the answer. I call your Honor's attention to

12 the record.

13 THE COURT: Read it.

14 ~ffi FRF.D~ICKS: KnoWing the facts as I do I didn't think the

15 question v~s understood. (Last question and answer read by

16 the report er. )

17 THE COURT: Objection overruled.

18 \m ROGms: :Rxception.

19 MR FORD: Read the last question to the witness.

20 (Last question read. )

21 A To the best of my knowledge and belie~ it was the first

day I went to the District Attorney's office ,nth this matte

I went with the District Attorney out to 1?~ Monte.

That is my memory of it.

1m. FRFDERICKS: Well, you were up at my house, and then what

did you do? A I went with the .. - after discussing

22

23

;24
{25
~26
~''' ..



1 Q, How did you go? A In his autO.
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1

Who all in the party? A Myself and himself.2 Q,

3 Q Anybody els e? A No sir.

4 Q, Out to "P'l ]!fonte? A Yes sir.

5 Q, What time did you get to El Monte ?

6 A v;hy, it was dark. I donl,t remember the time, it was

7 getting dark, though.

8 Q Your home is how far from El ~fonte? A About six miles

OJ On the other side or this? A Yes sir.

0. On the other side? A Yes sir.

Q What did you do when you got to Fl M'onte? ~

9 beyond.

10

11

12

13 1m ROGJI'RS: That is obj ected to as hearsay, incompetent,

14 irrelevant and immaterj.al; no foundation laid,

15 THE COURT: Obj ection overruled.

16

17

18

19

20

21

A

Q

Q,

Went to the telephone office.

Public telephone office? A Public telephone office.

asked to have the number on the card that Bert Franklin

given me, called long distance to LOS Angeles.

"lJhat telephone was that, Home or Sunset" A Home.

And what happened? A I requested the operator to

22 listen--

231m ROG3RS: This is certainly hearsay, incompetent.

24 TH~ COURT: Yes.

25 'MR FR-1iIT>ffiICKS: Well, yes. You need not state what you

26 requested the operatDr to do. Do you know who
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1 'was? A I never met her until that time.

Do you r~nember her name now? A Prouty, I think it is.

You went into the booth and telephoned? A

~hat Was the conversation?

Vfuo did you get on the telephone? A

Yes sir.

Bert Franklin.

Yes sir.Aprouty?

2 Q,

3 Q,

4 0,

5 Q,

6 Q,

7 1m. ROGERS: That is obj ected to as irrelevant t incompetent

8 and immaterial; no foundation laid; hearsay.

9 THE COURT: Objection overruled.

10 A T told him I had been unable to make the engagement in

11 town and that I had gone to F,l ~[onte and was telephoning him
/

'/12 from there ,and he said he would come out to the house.
J
I I told him all right. H9 asked me if he should bring the big

fellow with him, and I said yes, and he said he would be ri

out, and T suggested about 9 o'clock was the proper time for

him to get there, and he said all right and rang off.

And then what did you do? A Went on out to the house.17 Q,

18 Q. How did you go out to the house" A In the District

19 Attorney's auto.

20 Q.

21 Q,

You were driven out to your house then? A

And was it dark or not? A \~y, it was

yes sir.

22 at that time.

23 Q, ~hat occurred when you got to your house" A I discover

24 ed that my vlife had gone over to the station to meet me.

26 to relate that" 't' Hot now.

Don t relate the conversation. A You don't want me,25 Q
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A Well, he left me there.

~ That is, I left you there?

Q Yes, the District Attorney left and later other people

came.

Q Now then,how long was it until somebody else ca~e?

A Just a few minutes.

Q, And who came? A ",~r Browne and four or five others.

~ Do you remember any of them?· A Yes, l,fr Cam~ll was
amongst the bunch.

Q, DO you know wha t hi s business is? A Yes sir. He was

employed in the District Attorney's office as a detect~ve.

Q, \'11ho else came, if you remember? A ·Mr Bro\me, and the

other names I cannot thinkclf,excepting one, and that man

went wi th us fr om 1?1 Mont e, and that was 111fT 'Hi cks •

~ Now, go back to Monte, after the telephoning, vfuere did

we go? A We went to ,.rr Hicks I house, and al':Cer'V'nU'ds over

to his barn where he v~s milking.

Q, And then what? A And then back to his house, a,nd then

on over to my house.
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1 Q And who went then along? A" Mr Hicks.

2 Q Ur Hicks? A Yes, d.eputy sheriff.

3 Q And then after I had gone away and left you, you say

4

5

Browne and Campbell, end how many others came? A I

think there were four besides HI' Bro\me , or five -- four

6 ,CITr five of t.h em.

7 Q And vvnat time vas it when they got there? A It was

8 only a few minutes afterwards •.

9 Q yes. Well, about what time ves that? A I should jUdge

10 it v\,Ias 7 otclock.

11 Q
I

How \'Vere the c ondi tions as to light or dark? AI Oh, it

was getting dark, the lights "rere lit on the autd/",:e saw

coming; we saw them before you got away from there.

12

13

14 Q And then vhat did these men do, what occurred there?

15 MR ROGERS: We obj ect to tmt as incompetent, irrelevant

26· moment, even if they call Franklin an accomplice, which

A They putaway their

Let me explain, your Honor; it is

Obj ection overruled.

I object to tmt as hearsay and incompetent,

Where? A There vas three of them cone ealed --

Do you know where they concealed themselves? A Yes

THE COURT:

and innnaterial; no foundation lcdd; hearsay.

in the third degree.

sir.

Q

auto and concealed themselves about the place.

Q

lJrR ROGERS :

nothing but fair, I should tell you where this thing is'

getting this record into, if your Honor ~111 look at

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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arg'Jment on that.

MR KOGERS: He better, because it is reversable error.

]fR FREDEF'.ICKS: Very '::el1 --

MR ROGERS: I will .take chances.

l,fR FREDERICKS: Then, withdraw your obj ec tion.

HR ROGERS: No, we will not.

HR FORD: We are simply laying the foundation for the

have not proved yet, but your Honor is letting that part

in under the idea tmt they ,viII -- this man is not an cc­

cmmplice under th e statement he is an agent of the District

Attorney. Now, for Heaven's sake, ,how can it be possible

and the defendant has not come into this thing at all; he

has not sho"m up on the scene any more than a mediary; he

is not mentioned among those present at any time, they are

talking about Franklin -- but, supposing Franklin is to

come, suppose for the se.ke of .argument, how can it be

possible that this man, this witness, and Fredericks and

Browne and Campbell, not one of vmom s".ys he aler saw the

defendant or had anything to do y;i th him, can bind the de-

fendant? This is a good deal like a piece of evidencfe I

saw introduced in court once, seventh degree hearsay, this

isseven th deg re e hearsay. How do es it bind the defendant?

He has not been out at Ell{onte at all vlith Lockwood and

Fredericks and ~mpbell, nor out to the barn, he xs here

in Los Angeles in the meantime.

lfF. FREDERICKS: I do not think your Honor wants to h ear my

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
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15

16

17
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23

24
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26
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1 duction of the testimony of these other people to show

2 where they are, that· is 8:11; and as to the di scussions or

3 conversstions of Franklin, 've hwe already avowed our inten­

4 tion of connecting him up with it. If v.a fail to do it,

5 it all mould b e stricken out right now.

6 HR APPEL: fut, the fact of the matter is, you ere right

7 out of court now.

8 THE COURT: Obj ection overruled.

9 A Will you read that question again to me, please?

10 (Question read.) Three of them were concealed in the bam,

11 one of them went up on the tank to'\ver.

12 Q Where did the tank tower stand? A Between the house

13 and th e bam.

14 Q yes.

15 muse.

A And }Jr Campbell and l~rr Brovme went into the

16 Q Whereabouts into the house? A .The ECreen porch, at

17 the rear.

18 Q Now, where vas the automobile put, just in a general

20J.rR ROGERS: What automobile is that?

21 lfLR FREDERICKS: The automobile - - I "v.i.ll amplify the ques-

22 tion.

23 Q, Where was the automobile left? You say it was put

24 away, the automobile in which 1fr Brovme, l~r Campbell and

25 the other gentlemen came, you say it was put ~lay -- wh

26 was it put?

I![R H.OGERS: That is obj ected to as
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1 tent, entirely outside of the hearing of thedefendant, and

2 even if the man vroom thEy avow they are going to connect

3 it \ti th

4 THE COURT: Obj ection overruled.

5 MR ROGERS: Exception.

6 a quarter of a mile away-

7

8

9

10

11

12

A It vas taken over in th e field

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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ow, sae we, er or no l'ur ran::: In came ou '

2 night? A He did.

3 Q

4 Q

About what time? A I should jUdge about 9 o'clock.

Did he come alone, d.o-·-Y()U-·'"k;:;:·~;?"·~-'''-'H;''-'~;{~-;' th;;;-;-to-'--' ,

5 the house alone, yes.

6 Q

7 A

8 Q

9 Q

What did you first notice in regard to his coming?

Tap at the door.

Rapped at the door? A Yes sir, the front door.

Now, state what was said and done there by you and

10 Franklin fro m then on.

11 !mR .~:PF~: We object to that, now, upon the ground it is

12 incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial; hearsay, no founda­

13 tion laid, that if the evidence were in other respects ad­

14 missible, that it has now become inadmissible for the reason

15 that whatever was said or done between Franklin and this

16 witness at that time would not tend to prove any issue in

17 this case; on the contrary, it ~uld tend to disp~ove the

18 issues of this case; hearsay; ~o foundation laid.

19 THE COURT: Objection overruled.

20 Iv'ffi APPEL: We except.

When the tap come on the door I went out the front

and Franklin was standing over near a small palm tree

close to the tank house or tank tower, roe stopped and I
26

23 that grew in the lawn, the left hand side of the door, and

24 he spoke to me and I to him, and at once he suggested that

25 we walk around to the barn. ~e went out and near a hydrant,
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1 asked him where Mr Darrow was. "'Why". he says, "did you

2 think Darrow was coming out here?" I says, "I sure did."

3 ~m AFPEL: Wait a minute

4 THE COURT: Go on •

.(continuing) ~- "What made you think Darrow was5 A

6 out?" I says: "You told me over the 'phone and asked

7 you should bring the big one out", and he remarked he had

8 reference to Captain White. I asked where Captain White was

9 and he said he had a bad cold and couldn't come out that

10 night. I asked him if he brought the money and he said he

11 didn't. He said -- my impression is he said he couldn't

12

13

14

15

16

17

get it that night, but he said he had arranged to have me

meet him and Captain '.7hi te on the corner of Third and Los I
Angeles at 10 o'clock the next morning. I again objected I l

I
to Captain White as a stakeholder and he argued in his favpr

I'
1m TIOGERS: I move to strike that out 8S a conclusion an~'

I
~

opinion.

18 THE COURT: Strike it out.

19 Hffi FREDERICKS: We have no objection.

20 Q By Lir Fredericks -- '?li thou t s83 ing he argued in his

21 favor, just state what he said. ~ He said Captain White

22 was all ri.ght and that he had made arrangements for him to

23 meet us in the morning at'lO o'clock at the corner of Third

24 and Los Angeles street. and then at that time he walked over

25 to the driveway. where we drive out there with the vehicles,

26 and continued walking out vdth me towards



men out and on the side of the house next the driveway,

Campbell and Browne.

would take time enough, so I would have ample time to go to

home that morning, What car you came in on the

2
12 1'

I assured him I ~uuld be there on time, as near asplace.

-
Q Was anything said about when you would be in Court the

next morning? A Yes, I told him that 10 o'clock probably

would be the time I would have to report, and he told me

that I needn't to worr~ about that at all, that -- I think

I could, considering the running of the cars, and I bid him

Third and Los Angeles and back up to the court house.

Q Now let me ask you, go back in your memory, what time

you' left

he said that one of the juror's brothe!}3had died, and that

there would be no court that morning, and that anyway, it

next morning? What time you got to town?

A About 9 o'clock.

good-night and he went away.

Q During the time you were talking, where were those men

to vhom you have referred, Browne, Ricks and Campbell, and

the others? A One was nearly up· even, ViaS on the tank

tower, and thre'e of them were in the front, and I left, when

I left the house, two of them in the house, when I parted

with him and went back to the house I found both of those

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10
I

11
[lith

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1 Q Well, my question v~s -- there was' so many questions that

2 the 9 o'clock part doesn't answer it. What time did you get

3 to town, is that what you meant to answer? A Well, j twas

4 between 9 and 10 when T go t to town, I think.

5 Q Do you remember what time you left home that morning?

6 A NO, T don't, I c ouldn 't say.

7 Q Now, T wish to call your attention again -- I withdraw

8 that question. Now, I wish to call your attention agai~ --,

9 carefully search your memory in regard to the hour you agreed

10 to meet Franklin in Los Angeles.

11 1,ffi ROGERS~ Now,if your Honor please, that is a "\Tery unique

12 proposi tion.H'i!re is his ovm agent on the stand, your Honor

13 please, emd he has ba.wled it up. He has got ita different

14 time from what he said before. Now rJ) unsel wants to straig1b.te

15 him out before I get ,at him, emd it is an attempt to c ross-

16 examine his ovm witness. 'He is not telling his story right,

17 now counsel says, "search your memory and see if you cannot

18 come through like you did before". T obj ect to that as

19 incompetent, .smd suggestive and very suggestive. He has said

20 twic e now 10 0' clock. Counsel knows here is the record

21 where he said something else. He 'wants to straighten him out

.22 before VIe get at him. I obj ect to it as attempting to cross­

23 examine his o~n witness and bolster him up.

24 TIfF, COURT: Objection overruled.

25 ~!.R FR~ERICKS: I vnsh to make another objection to the

26 language of counsel for the defendant. I am here
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1 bread by the sweat of my face in the best way I know how,

2 and trying to get the truth pefore:,this: l),ury in my humb1 e waj

3 the best way T know how, and T would be a craven if I did

4 not attempt to have a witness speak the truth, and if T

5 noticed by an inadvert~nce that he had mentioned a wrong

6 hour, it is my duty to call the matter carefully to his

7 attention. T take that to be my duty und8r the law, <.md I

8 want this jury to know the truth just as it was, and as

9 for counsel, "getting at him", I object to such language

10 TITE r,ODlRT: The court concurs Vv~th your view of it, hy

11 overruling counsel's objection. That seemed to be quite

12 uncalled for.

131m FRBD"RRICKS: Now, will you anl1iwer the question, if you

14 can? A ~y memory was 10 O'clock, but this having been

15 brought to my attention so carefully and prother Rogers

16 1-'aving apparently voluntarily read it out from the record

17 that it was nine, I expect T am mistakenj it vas 9 O'clock.

18 Q, Well the record --you testified a few days after this

19 at the preliminary examination, did you not? A Yes sir.

20 Q. Your memory was fresher then than it is now? A Yes sir,

21 T would like to say that this matter has not been brought to

22 my attention from that day to this. I haven't thought of

23 that hour from that day to this.

24 Q. Have you ever read your preliminary exa..'1lination testi-

25 mony? A No sir.

vas there any discussion between you and Franklin in reg

Now then, let us come dOwn to the morning of the 20t26 Q,
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1 to the time when the jury vas called to meet in Los Angeles?

2 ~ffi· APPYiL: Wait a moment. We object upon the ground it is

3 incompetent, irrelevant a.nd immaterial, suggestive,leading

4 and no foundation laid" c3,nd hearsay.

5 TIfF. COURT: Overruled.

6 MR APP"P[,: :Exception. A Th~re.was. If I reme~ber right,

7 T suggested that at the hour Vie were tomeet there, a~bout the

8 time I would have to be up tothe courtIioom, and then he

9 made this remark about there going to be no court, and I

10 said that the judge would evidently call the venire that

11 had been issued, the panel, and that I would have to be

12 there to answer to my name. ne said I would have ample time

13 to get there.

14 q,

15 Q

Now, who. t did you do the next morning? A Came to tovm.

That is Tuesday morning, the 2bth? A -Came to to~nt

16 and before court opened ~ent to the corner of Third and Los

17 Angeles street.

18 Q ~~ere did you get off the car when you came in that

19 morning, do you remember'? A I got off at Fifth street.

20 Q, And then where did you walk to? A T walked immediately

21 over to the nwl drug store, then back up to Sixth and ~fain

22 and then do~n to Los Angeles,and north on Los Angeles street

23 on the east side to the corner of Third.

No~th onLos AngeleS,to theea~t side of Los Angeles'?

25 A

26 Q

yes sir.

To the co~ner of Third'? A Yes sir.



the southeast corner to the northeast corner, meeting him

on tha t corner.

On the northwest corner.

VIe shook hands, a.sked him what was doing or

276
Captain vVhi t e.A

On the northwest corner. Then what occurred?

~~ere ~s he standing when you first saw him?

Who did you see there, if anybody?

He walked across to the northeast corner, a.nd I fromA

Q

A

Q,

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8 words--

9 MR ROGERS: Just a moment.

10 I i\1fR FRRD7:R1CKS: T will ask that questi.on -­
I

11 1m ROGERS: I moye to strike out that conversation, as not

12

13

14

responsive.

"!I.ffi FR1WFR1CKS:

out.

no objection. The conversation is stricken

15 TH~ COURT: The only con"ITersati.on related was,"1 asked him

16 what ;,vas do:i.ng. It Want that out?

17 11m HOGFRS: Surely.

18 THR COURT: Strike it out.

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1

1 UR FREDERICKS: What corner v.6s.it you met on? A North-

2 east corner of the intersection at' Third and Los Angel es.

3 Q Now, vm.at conversatioridid you have there -- with-

4 draw trot.

5 there? A

Did you have some conversation wi th him

Yes sir.

6 Q Now, who was present when you had. that conversation?

7 A \VJ:o/, so far as recognizing aI:\Vone, no one butCa~ptain.
8 White and myself at the start.

9 Q And wha t was that conversation-- don't answer ujltil

10 counsel objects •.
11 UR ROGERS: We obj ec t to that as incomp; tent, i rrelevan t

12 and imma terial, and no foundation laid.

13 ~:rR FREDERICKS: We vrill show, may it please the court,

14 tha t Captain 'White Ylas also an accom!'lice in this cas~;

15 accomplice vlith thisdefendant.

16 }.[R ROGERS: Wouldn't it be a good scheme to find out whether

17 or not if Captain White ever saw!tfr Darrow before that time?

18 lTR FREDERICKS: It v:i11 not be necessary to find out if

19 Captain White aFer saw lir Darrov'l before that time. I

life.

don't suppose he aFer did, I don't lmow.

]\r.R ROGERS: I don't think he ever saw lJr Darrow in his

l~R R.zEDERICKS: I doni't, either, not as far as I lmow.

He is an accomplice --

An accomplic e at' l'[r Ie.rrow being a man he

$W.

J!R ROGEP.s :

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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I think ihat the question of the District At-

2 torney is proper under hi s avo\val. ()Yerruled.

3 MR ROGERS: EXception.

(Last question read by -the reporter.)

We shook hands and the question that I asked him was,

6 "What is new?" His answer was, "Nothing except a mutual

7 friend of ours intrusted me '\"vi.th some money to be Plid to

8 y ou on certain conditions.· Are yout-eady to :receive it?"

9 !I said, "How much money, and ,'.hat are the conditions?"

10 I He says ,-l"I am to hand you $500, and to holli$300Q for you

11 until such times as a verdict of not guilty is rendered or

12 the jury hung in the McNamara case. II I says, "It don't

13 go. There \~S to be $3500.held, not $3000."" I said,

14 "\Vh,e 1'e is Franklin? II VThy, he said, "He just v.ent fNlay

15 from here." Well, I said, "It don't go at all, because

16 there was to be $4000. u ( He said, possibly there is

17 in this rOll, I haven't examined it very carefully.

18 Well, I says, go in the store and examine it. He says, "I

19 ain't got no business in the store, and he says, "I will

20 walk up thestreet a Ii ttl e bit and look. 11 He came back

21

22

23

24

25

26

and says, __ It

Q, Did he \',alk up th estreet? A Yes si r.

Q, Which "JaY? A North on the Slme side of the street.

Q, .North on what street? A Los Ange1es street.

Q And did you observe him as hevas walking along north?

A I saw hiI!I\Valking up north, and apparently
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for him when he carries out his part of the contract.

work to dispose of a thousand-dollar bill under these cir-

done. White says, I have done as I agreed. I have

turned over $500 to 1!Lr Lockwood and I have $3500 to hold

F.aw would a fellow go to

A man about that time rode up

Vfell, he said that they might be changed

before the trial was ended.

cumstances?

me at that time. I told him all right, that I was ready,

and he handed me the $500 bill, exhibi tin.g to me the other

money before he done it. I told him that I thought that

the passing of a $500 bill on a proposition of that kind

was decidedly outt of the way; that it ought to have been

thing in his hand. He had the roll of money in his hands

when he le ft me, and he came back 'and sai d that there \yere

$3500 in the roll aside from the $500 that he ~s to hand

two's or five's. well, he says, part of the bills of

thi sis thousand dollar bills. .Well, I say s, that is all

At that point I stated to Mr Franklin, UBert, I am afraid

there is something wrong. After you Ie ft I est night,

my wife and I both thonght Vfe heard somebody out there at

the place, and I got up and went around and didn't see a

boct", but I am afraid somebody'Aas out there. It He said,

on a motorcycle, and stopped there close to us, and I
bill

dropped the $500,,, on the g round, and stooped over to pick

.i t up. .About that time Yfe saw Franklin across the street,

and we \1alked over to him. Franklin asked Yfhat wehai

. V'.Tong in a. case of this kind.

1
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6Q What· do you mean? A well, he said, "The sons-of-

7 bi tches tf , j~st in that way.

8 Q. All right, go ahead. A And said, tfDon' t look around.

9 And then he says, "Let' s get out of here." And \ve started

10 . and \'7alked up, he and I, side by each, to the comer of

11
I

Third and 1[ain. Then we walked north on Main v,herethe

12 j ~ in Third street go es west I and as we approached tm t

13 place, I saw a man come roross the intersection, and Bert

14 said to me, "Wait a moment""" I want to speak to this man,"

15 and I turned around, 5ust as the two met, :md at that
-

16 point lir Brovme put ont his hands like this, and separated

17 them.

18 Q

19 A

Separated Franklin and the man that came to meet him?

Yes sir, and about tha t time --

20 HR APP:EL: Wei t a moment. Your Honor, we move to strike

21 out the statement made by the District Attorney, referring

22 to one of the se men as the man t ret came to meat him.

23 THE COURT: Stricken ou t.

24 :rER FREDERICKS: It may be stricken out. 'What "las the last

.25 answer of the juror there? (Last ansYler read by the r e­

26 . porter.

Q And ",'ho wa s th at man that came there ~(~(mn)~
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short way of the block.

Q Then, when you got to the comer of Main and Third,

you and Franklin, '.vhat di d you do? . A On the east side

of l~ain.

Q, On the east side of Main, "fhat did )'Lou do? A We

v~lk ed north to about the point wh ere Third .street

1 A I have learned sine e that it was Clarenc e Darrow.

2 Q The defendant in thi s case? A Yes si r.

3 Q And howfar '.'vas that from the comer of Third and Los

4 ADg el es street?

5 UR ROGERS: L et him tell where it"ras. Let's see if we can

6 tell how far.

7 ~'[R FREDERICKS: What we tell '..von' t cotmt.

8 lJTR ROGERS: Yes, I know.

9 :MR FHEDEHICKS: It is for the jury to determine by evidence

10 howfar it was.

11 MR ROGERS: All right, go ahead.

12 A I should judge that it v{as about four or five hundred

13. feet.

14 HR FREDERICKS: Well, just state -- from Third and Los

15 Angeles street ,mere you met Cap White. now, .;ust describe

16 your 'W""dlk from then on wi t h 'Jll. rticula r detai 1 as to wh ere

17 you ent, you understand. A We went right west on the

18 no nh side of Thi I'd street to the corner of I""ail1.

19 Q How many blocks is trot? A That is just one block;

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1 west; the re is a j o.g there.

2 Q About how far is that from the corner that you vrolked

3 north? A I should jUdge it was about 100 feet, or

4 pos sibly 150. I never looked at it to get the di stanc e ex:-

5 actly.

6 Q. Now, then, 'Tha t occurred when Brown stepped up there

7 and did '\v11.a t you have described? A. He plac ed Mr Franklin

8 under arrest.

9 Q And what did lyTr Darrow do? A Well, really, I lost

15 the District Att01'ley -- from the city. I think it Vlas Hr

16 Home, and a party of' us altogether. There Vias a number.

18 don't know all of the employes of the District Attorney's

19 office well eno'tlgh to give their nam.es, but there was Mr

20 Bro"me and Hr Home and ur Campl)ell finally.

-
'\Vho all was in, that party that you remember? A I

And nO'll, after you left the corner of Third and Los

I\~s under arrest, and I lost sight of Ilr Darrow from. there.

Q All right. Then, ,'foot did you do? A Went up --

Q In company vil th who? A With adetec tive, I think from

21 Q.

17

10 sight of JEr Darrow right there. I saw no more of lJr Dar-

11 row. I had never seen him before, and someone told me that

12

13

14

22 Angeles streets, do you know 'I'.nat gecame of White, where

23

24

25

26

White went? A White "'-.as brought up about the time that

Mr Franklin\·.as placed under arrest, Hr White was brought

up abou t that time and he had been behin d us, and we all

came along in a bunch from t here on, walked to· the Hall

of Records, and then upstairs.
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-Pete1 Q , When you got to the Hall of Records -- by the V{ay, What

2 had become of the five hundred dollars all this time?

3 A I had it.

4 Q You had it? A Yes sir.

5 Q Whereabou ts? A In my pocket.

6 Q And when you got to the Hall of Records, V{hat did you

7 do? A Went up the elevator. in the elevator, to the dis-

8 trict a tto rney' s offi ce.

9 Q Who was with you, aside from the officers? A Bert

10 Franklin and Captain White.

11 lQ Bert Franklin, Captain White and yourself, aside from

12 the officers? A Yes sir.

13 Q When you got up to the district a. ttorney' s offi ce v;here

14 did you go'? A Into his private office.

15 Q And what occurred in there?

161m rOGER3: I object to that as irrelevant, incompetent,

17 immaterial, and even under the avowal of the district attor­

18 ney. no conversation is admissible even against co-conspirato

19 after the conspiracy is ended; that is elementary. your Honor

20 incompetent. irrelevant and immaterial, and no foundation

21 la id.

1IR F-'~DEnI Cles :22 Before the Court rules upon that I would like

23 to ask one other question.

24 Q By 1.:r Fredericks: Who Vias presen t when you went into

25 the district attorney's private office? A The district at­

26 torney and ~r l'ridham of the Board of Supervisors.



And in your party who? A Yes.

2 Q Who was present in your party? A Captain Vlliite, ~r

l\Ir Browne --

objected, what occurred?

elementary, that while conspiracy is alleged with the object

Franklin and myself, and I'lr Ho-:'me and I think Mr Campbell,

I think, if your Honor please, this is absolutel

Now, I will ask you the question to which counsel has

And other officers? A Yes.Q

Q

!:lR ROGEPS:

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

sought, to bind one conspirator wi th the statement of the10
11 I other one, it is elementary, if the object of the conspiracy

12 has been affected, tllat nothing that has been said is ad-

13 missible.

14 IvIR FORD:

15
Honor.

16
MR ROGERS:

Thousands of authorities to that effect.

That is a correct statement of the law, your

I object to that as incor.~etent, irrelevant,

of a general conspiracy, or rather the testimony in referenc

Acts in furtheranc

no foundation laid, and hearsay.

Counsel is correct in his interpretation of tl~

is committed; in other v;ords, we v;ill show that this con­

spiracy continued after the arrest of Bert Franklin on

to of a conspirator is confined to those/acts mlich are done
in

during the existence of the conspiracy an(l",.furtherance of th

conspiracy, but that does not necessarily end at the time

that the particular·act for which the defendant is on trial

immaterial;

law, but wrong in his application of it.

1m FORD:

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

I
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8 I\'IR ROGERS:

9 ~:lR :FORD:

t
\.
~

{ Hovember 28, and we will 'show that at that time Bert

2 Franklin still continued to act in furtherance of the

3 general conspiracy, and tha.t the conspiracy was not ended
.' .' .

4 on that day, and another thing, as to Vihet occurred on that

5 date in ref~rence to 'money, in reference to the things that

6 do not, are part of the res gestae and part of this case,

7 independent of anytconspiracy.

Does your Honor want any authorities upon that?

I cite your Honor's attention to Abbott --

10 THE COURT: I have the authority, I think, that is discussed

11 I in the Moffatt case. Ob jection overruled.

12 1ilR ROGERS: Exception.

13 A I

14 A

Willyou read the questi on? ( Quest ion read)

I.-Captain Fredericks wanted to know wha t was up,

15 Mr Bro'\\n e had told him that he had arrested Mr Franklin and

Captain White, and Captain Fredericks asked !-o!r Franklin o.p

16 1. ....

17 he had any statement to make and wished to say anything, and.

18 he said he didn't. He asked Capta in ';,Ihi t e if he wished to

19 make a statement, and,where the money v;as, and Captain 1'lhite

20 took the money out of his pocket and gave it to him.

21 1.1R ROG'PRS: I move to strike that out as absolutely incom-

22 peten t, hearsay and no foundation laid. I specify the

sta temen ts were made by Freaericks, l'1hi te and the wi tness.23

24
THE CO UP. T: The motion to strike out is denied.

1m FREDERICKS: There has been a motion to strike out the
26

1m ROGERS: Exception.
25



1 Ianswer?

2 THE COURT: Yes.

3 MR APPEL: That has been ruled on.

4 1m FREDERICKS: I know. I was going on.

5 Q By Mr Fredericks --' Row much money did Captain Whi te

6 turn over there?

7 MR ROGERS: That is objected to as hearsay, incompetent,

8 not binding upon the defendant in any way; hearsay, no founda

9 tion laid.

10 THE COURT: Ob jection overrule d.

111m ROGERS: Exception.

12 A First three thousand dollars and after~ards five

13 hundred dollars more.

14 MR ROGERS: ITnat is the answer? (AnsVler read)

15 Q By Mr Fredericks: Vlha t did you do wi th the five hundred

16 dollars that you had?

17 MR APPEL: Wait a moment. We object to that on the ground

18 it is incompetent, irrelevant, immaterial, hearsay and not

19 binding upon the defendant.

20 THE COURT: Objection overruled,.

211m APPEL: We except.

22 A Gave it to the district attorney.

:-Pet23 Q Did you take the number of that five hundred dollar

24 bill? A no sir, I did not.

25 Q You say ~70U didn't take it? A No sir.

26 Q Were the numbers of those bills taken in your pr esenc
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1 MR ~~?EL: We object to that on the ground it is incompe­

2 tent, irrelegant and immaterial, as it calls for acts and

3 declarations, and calls for independ acts of other persons,

4 not members of the conspiracy, who didn't become co-conspira

5 tors; not binding upon the defendant, in the absence of the

6 defendant; no foundation laid, hearsay.

7 TEE COURT: Objection overruled.

8 rm APPEL: We except.

9 A

10 Q

The numbers were taken.

Do you remember what the denominations of the bills

13 rest were five hundred dollars, as near as I can remember

11 Viere, did you notice? A Why, as near as I could remember,

12 there was one one-thousand dollar bill, and I think the

16 which you say Bert Franklin gave you on the occasion of one

17 of his visits on which he ~rote his telephone number.

18 :r.ffi ROGERS: That is not lead~ng, at all. He says: II I am

19 going to show you __ "

20 MR FREDERICKS: An hour or so ago when examining this viii, tnos

21 he said Bert Franklin gave him a carli: on which he had writ­

22 ten the number of his telephone. I asked the Clerk if he

I have here a card and call your attention to a card15 Q

14 now.

23 had the card, w.hich had been introduced in evidence in the

24. pr eliminary; the Cle'rk didn't have itat the time. I asked

for People's Exhibit nAil, and I have it, and I simply want t25

26 introduce it.



You told him you had a card, that is what you1 IMR APPEL~
2 told him.

3 MR FREDERICKS: Did I?

?2 r

~. d

4 1:ffi APPEL: Yes sir, you told him "I have a card given to

5 you by Franklin"; you are telling him.

6 MR ROGERS: I don't know whether we have our rights, but I

7 want to protest weare not getting them. The district at­

8 torney has no business to lead him that way.

9 1m F~EDERICKS: I suppose not, but it is such an immaterial

10 matter,it occurred to me it is nearly 5 o'clock and we could

11 get this in and quit. I don't care a rap about it, I won't

The Clerk can have it back. I don't care12 offer the card.

13 about it.

14 MR ROGERS: Then why di d you I red him?

15 IUR FREDERICKS: Simply to save time.

16 THE COURT: Gentlemen of the jury, the Court is about to

17 ~djourn until 9: 30 tomorrow morning.

18 TaR APPEL: I would submit, good naturedly, some of the

19 jurors are close to the district attorney and I can hear some

20 of those remarks, and it might be possible fuey hear than.

21 :l.1fR FREDERICKS: Ue are willing the whole thing should be

22 moved doVin a couple feet further.

231m APPEL: You don't want to get into the jury box, now, do

24 you?

25 IJR F~EDERICKS: No sir.

26. MR .APfEL: I say it as a matter of good feeling, that some
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the remarks might be heard, there; as a matter of caution,

2 that is all.

3 THE COURT: Gentlemen of the jury, the Court is about to

4 adjourn until 9: ~O tomorrow morning, and I want to admonish

5 you especially tonight that you should observe the fact

6 that you are sequestered and Ii ving apart from the general

7 community in order that you may keep your minds entirely

8 free from any eVidence, free from any newspaper statement,

9 any newspaper headlines, from any comments by passers, or

10 from any other persons, in order that your minds may deci de

11 this case solely upon the eVidence that you hear in the

12 court room, and admonish you as heretofore that you do not

13 talk about this case, particularly that you should not let

14 anybody talk to you or at you in reference to the merits of

15 this case. Don't form Or express any opinion until the

16 whole matter is submitted to you. We will adjourn until

17 9: 30 tomorrow morn ing •

18 118 FORD: We have another rna tter coming up at that time,

19 and I suggest that the jury might be excused until ten.

20 THE COURT: Perhaps so.

21 IiR FREDERICKS: Also perhaps we might be excused, too.

22 THE COURT: The hearing in this case will be resumed at

23 ten o'clock tomorrow morning.

24

25
J.

(Here the Court took an adjournment until Tuesday, May 28,

26 1912, ten 0' clock A. J;t )

---0---




